
 
Town of Reading 

Meeting Posting with Agenda 

 

This Agenda has been prepared in advance and represents a listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed 

at the meeting. However the agenda does not necessarily include all matters which may be taken up at this meeting. 
 

Page | 1 

2018-07-16 LAG 

Board - Committee - Commission - Council: 
 

      School Committee             
 

Date:  2022-06-09 Time:  7:00 PM      

 

Building:  School - Memorial High Location:  School Library 

 

Address:  62 Oakland Road Agenda:                       

 

Purpose:  Open Session 
 

Meeting Called By: Thomas Wise, Chair 
 

Notices and agendas are to be posted 48 hours in advance of the meetings excluding 

Saturdays, Sundays and Legal Holidays. Please keep in mind the Town Clerk’s hours of 

operation and make necessary arrangements to be sure your posting is made in an adequate 

amount of time. A listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed at 

the meeting must be on the agenda. 

 
All Meeting Postings must be submitted in typed format; handwritten notices will not be accepted. 

 

Topics of Discussion: 

 

7:00 p.m. A. Call to Order 

   

7:05 p.m. E. New Business 

1. Staff Recognition 

   

7:30 p.m. B. Public Comment 

 

Consent Agenda  

1. Minutes (05-26-2022) 

2. Exxon Mobile Educational Alliance Donation 

3. Nature’s Classroom Field Trip – Coolidge 

4. Donation to Reading Memorial High School 

 

Reports 

1. Student 

2. Assistant Superintendent of Student Services 

3. Assistant Superintendent of Learning & Teaching 

4. Director of Finance and Operations 

5. Superintendent 

6. Liaison/Sub-Committee 

   

7:45 p.m. E. New Business 

2. Killam Update: McKibben Demographic Research Enrollment 

Forecast 

3. Imagine Learning Grant Review & Approval 

4. Learning and Teaching Year End Update 

5. Killam Discussion: School Permanent Building Appointment 

Committee Background and Discussion 

   

9:00 p.m. C. Personnel 

1. Superintendent Summative Evaluation Review and Vote 



 
Town of Reading 

Meeting Posting with Agenda 

 

This Agenda has been prepared in advance and represents a listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed 

at the meeting. However the agenda does not necessarily include all matters which may be taken up at this meeting. 
 

Page | 2 

2. MOA with Paraprofessional Union – Juneteenth Holiday Recognition 

- Vote 

   

 F.  Information / Correspondence 

1. RE: ARPA Funds....additional School Security Investment – 

Frederick Van Magness 

   

9:30 p.m.  Adjourn  

**Times are approximate 



2021-2022

fàtyy `|ÄxáàÉÇxá



2021-2022

cÜÉyxáá|ÉÇtÄ  gxtv{xÜ 
fàtàâá



Professional Teacher Status
Terri Bello Parker Middle School

Kathryn Boilard Joshua Eaton Elementary

Molly Burr Birch Meadow Elementary

Troy Carr Reading Memorial  High

Emma Costigan Wood End Elementary

Christine Crocker Barrows Elementary

Matthew Darling Coolidge Middle School

Helen Day Reading Memorial High

Ashley Dennis Birch Meadow Elementary

Mark Farrin Reading Memorial High

Nancy Fowke Parker Middle School

Allison Kramer Birch Meadow Elementary

Jacqueline Lytle Barrows Elementary

Michele Malley Reading Memorial High

Margaret Moloney Coolidge Middle School

HollyBeth Murphy Reading Memorial High

Kevin Phillips Coolidge Middle School

Elena Raucci Barrows / Eaton

Ryan Sacco Reading Memorial High

Mackenzie Sanfeliu Birch Meadow Elementary

Nicole Schweizer Parker Middle School

Jillian Solivan Reading Memorial High

Lindsay St. Germain Killam Elementary School

Tracey Tomkins RISE Preschool

Ashley Wheaton Killam Elementary School

Lisa Wistrom Coolidge Middle School



2021-2022

DC lxtÜá Éy fxÜä|vx



10 Year Milestone
Kelly Bedingfield Reading Memorial  High School

Lynne Cerretani-Clarke RISE Preschool

Kristyn Cohen Central Office

Denise Conry Coolidge Middle School

Danielle Gianatassio Wood End Elementary

Megan Kiser Parker Middle School

Harlan Kroff Reading Memorial High School

Heather Lombardo Reading Memorial High School

Lynda Michel Wood End Elementary 

Julianne Mitrano Parker Middle School

Nicole O’Neill Parker Middle School

Jacquelyn Pelusi Wood End Elementary

Jane Stewart-Cunningham Reading Memorial High School



2021-2022

EC lxtÜá Éy fxÜä|vx



20 Year Milestone

Carina Becker Barrows Elementary

Carol Chapman Birch Meadow Elementary

Mary Cuscuna Coolidge Middle School

Lisa Emma Coolidge Middle School

Julie Lascher Coolidge Middle School

Erica Lebow Coolidge Middle School

Megan Nelson Coolidge Middle School

Stacy Kress Joshua Eaton Elementary

Jennifer DiMuzio Parker Middle School

Meg Powers Parker Middle School

Jennifer Cambra Reading Memorial High

Katherine Fiorello-Campbell Reading Memorial High

Karen Murphy Reading Memorial High

Sharon Pineault-Burke Reading Memorial High

Joyce Camenker RISE Preschool

Carla Pennacchio Reading Public Schools

Ellen Commito Wood End Elementary

Elena Raffa Wood End Elementary



2021-2022

FC lxtÜá Éy fxÜä|vx



30 Year Milestone

Thomas Zaya Reading Memorial High School

Lucille Kaloyanides Killam Elementary



2021-2022

exà|ÜxÅxÇàá



Retirements

Patrice Donahue RISE Preschool

Sharon DiFiore Birch Meadow Elementary

Laura Ives Joshua Eaton Elementary

Lisa Emma Coolidge Middle School

Patricia Flaherty Barrows Elementary School

Christine Friberg Coolidge Middle School

Joanne King Wood End Elementary

Joseph LaVita Reading Memorial High

Kathleen MacMillan Killam Elementary

Sharon Pineault-Burke Reading Memorial High

Jane Shea Reading Memorial High

Denise Weadick Wood End Elementary



2021-2022

W|áà|Çzâ|á{xw gxtv{|Çz 
TãtÜw



Distinguished Teaching Award

Jamie Benger Reading Memorial High School

Christine Crocker Barrows Elementary

Anne Manna Joshua Eaton Elementary

Tim McIntire Reading Memorial High School

Andrew Spinali Parker Middle School



2021-2022

W|áà|Çzâ|á{xw _xtwxÜá{|Ñ 
TãtÜw



Distinguished Leadership Award

Mary Giuliana
Director of Nursing



Town of Reading 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attendees:  
Members – Present: Shawn Brandt, Erin Gaffen, Carla Nazzaro, Sarah McLaughlin, Chuck 

Robinson 

Members – Not Present:  Tom Wise 

Others Present: Superintendent Tom Milaschewski, Assistant Superintendent for Learning and 

Teaching Sarah Hardy, Assistant Superintendent of Student Services Jen Stys, Director of Finance 

& Operations Susan Bottan, METCO Director Kurtis Martin 

 

Minutes Respectfully Submitted By: Susan E. Brown on behalf of the Chair 

 

A. Call to Order - Shawn Brandt opened session at 7:00pm and reviewed the agenda. He thanked Mr. 

Martin for hosting us at the Book Charter School, Boston MA, and he then acknowledged the terrible 

events happening around the country regarding the school shootings. 

 

B. Routine Matters 

 

a. Public Comment:   

 

Mr. Brandt invited the public to comment on items not on the agenda. No comments were made. 

 

b. Consent Agenda: 

 

Mr. Brandt moved, second by Mr. Robinson to approve the consent agenda. The vote carried 5-
0. Mr. Brandt, Mrs. Gaffen, Ms. McLaughlin, Mrs. Nazzaro, and Mr. Robinson.  

 

c. Reports: 

 

Dr. Milaschewski thanked everyone for coming to the school committee meeting in Boston and 

thanked the METCO parents and students for making a commitment to attend Reading Public 

Schools. 

 

Dr. Milaschewski presented the following on behalf of Millie Arbaje-Thomas, CEO of METCO 

• Friday the “history of desegregation via bussing”, at Huntington Theatre. 

• Living the Legacy Conference June 10th, ½ day professional development experience at Sheraton 

Framingham 

• Tours all summer for history of METCO 

Board – Committee – Commission – Council: 

School Committee 

Date: 2022-05-26    Time: 7:00 PM 

Building:  Brooke Charter High School  Location: Auditorium 

Address:  200 American Legion Highway  Session: Open Session 

                  Boston, MA 

Purpose:  Open Session    Version: Draft 



  

• Ms. Arbaje asks everyone to call their senators to thank them for a 1M increase for METCO 

program. 

 

Mr. Brandt reported that the ARPA committee approved an allocation of $2M for the early literacy 

program.  He mentioned that the survey is closing soon for suggestions of where to allocate the 

additional funds to go. 

 

Ms. Gaffen to reported that the Policy Subcommittee met on May 11th and she will provide more 

details later in the meeting. 

 

Ms. McLaughlin reported on RCTV Board meeting that Anna Cuevas continuing on as a teacher at 

RMHS next year. 

 

Mrs. Nazzaro reported that she attended the Audit Committee, and they reviewed the RMLD 

budget. 

 

Mr. Brandt moved, second by Mrs. Nazzaro, to take E1-E4 out of order.  The vote carried 5-0. 
Mr. Brandt, Mrs. Gaffen, Ms. McLaughlin, Mrs. Nazzaro, and Mr. Robinson.  

 

E.  New Business  

 

1. Students of Color & Ally’s for Equality, Justice, and Inclusion 

 

Board Members - Dasia Grant, Jeremiah Sanford, Kamea Wootan, Timia Jones, Sydnee Smiley, Leyna 

Lamothe & Sophia Ortins 

Group Members – Bianca Ferguson, Gineva Gilbertie, Samadria Malo, Aaron Palm and Julianna 

Martin 

 

They presented two poignant videos and are also holding a movie night fundraiser on June 18th more 

details to come. 

 

Speaking on behalf of friends of Reading METCO – Sherilla Lestrade, Theresa Wiggins, Levonda Epps, 

Tish McCarter. 

 

Friends of Reading METCO started a few years ago, they are back after the break due to Covid 

Pandemic, more parent volunteers are needed of both Boston and Reading families to make it 

successful. The purpose of this group is to help in building relationships between Reading and Boston 

families. They host events to help the students build life-long relationships. The last event was a 

roller-skating evet that was a big success, the next event will be in August. 

 

The group helps to bridge the gap between the two locations so that students in the METCO 

program who want to attend sports events, drama, music etc., the students can have the ability to 

attend them…the METCO students spend hours on the bus to come to and from school, and to have 



  

a local Reading family that the parents of the METCO student will know it helps to enable the METCO 

family’s to attend these important events. 

 

2. Reading METCO Update 

 

Mr. Kurtis Martin – Reading METCO update starting with introductions of those Reading School Staff 

and School Committee members to those METCO families in attendance. 

 

Kurtis was a student of METCO himself…wanted to rebuild the Reading METCO Program, starting 

with having all the administration from RPS in Boston to meet the Boston families who participate in 

the METCO program, to give them a better understanding of where our METCO students come from 

to better help them reach and teach their students. 

 

Next there was professional development and collaboration with the school committee and make a 

video for the METCO program to show what the Reading METCO program can be, to be shared with 

RPS Community as well as METCO community. 

 

One of the items was increasing access for the Boston families, starting with late busses, especially 

for the students who play sports, music, and theatre to allow them to go back home and not ride 

public transportation.  This allowed students the ability to hang out with friends after school or stop 

and meet with teachers. This greatly improves the students experience at RPS. DESE approved an 

HBCU Tour (historically Black Colleges & Universities) but due to Covid that was postponed they will 

begin again next school year. 

 

School Committee approved the increase of 40 more students and five Elementary METCO 

Coordinators for Reading METCO.  They also approved a third bus for METCO to allow HS to no 

longer must arrive at school hours early.  They now arrive only 30-40 min before school.  We were 

also give the students the ability to attend prom with the additional bus. 

 

Mr. Martin goals for the Reading METCO program are 

a. Understanding what METCO is 

b. Increase access for the students 

c. Build the community of support 

 

What’s next?? 

a. Host families 

b. Mentorship programs 

c. HS HBCU Tour (historically Black Colleges and Universities) 

d. MLK Dinner 

e. METCO Awards night 

f. Additional HS Room 

g. Hiring a parent to be a paraprofessional and a bus monitor 

h. Elementary School field trips to Boston 

i. Bring back the 8th Grade DC Field Trip 



  

j. Next year for JR/SR there will be a race class in coordination with the History chairperson. 

 

We have a lot of work to do but we can do it. 

 

School Committee members commented on the incredible work that Kurtis has done to renew the 

energy in the Reading METCO Program. The town appreciates the work that he has put into the 

program to bring about change in the program. 

 

Dr. Milaschewski had some trivia: How many METCO students are in RPS 4k, every student in a RPS 

Student is a METCO student because we are an entire community! 

 

Levonda Epps – When we can get Kurtis help as he does a LOT of the work? Kurtis answered that the 

elementary coordinators will help tremendously. 

 

Dr. Milaschewski responded that within the budget is approval for five elementary METCO 

coordinators.  They will be liaisons between the Boston families and the RPS. They will also be a 

school counselor to the students as well. Further, he shared that two of the roles have already been 

filled; one at Killam Elementary and one at Birch Meadow Elementary.  Both hires are BIPOC. At the 

current time, the staff of RPS is 98% white.  We have a lot of work to do with regards to diversity and 

to have an educator group that resembles the diversity of our students. 

 

Levonda Epps – The job descriptions need to be rewritten to attract candidates of color to come to 

work at RPS. 

 

Sherilla Lestrade – RPS needs more educators that are people of color.  We also need better 

diversified curriculum that is more inclusive. 

 

Sherilla Lestrade – Will the race class be trickling down to the lower grades to ensure that the lower 

grades understand race…a “lighter” version of the race class offered to HS students. 

 

Parent Off Camera – His daughter was in METCO 30 years ago.  He asked if there will be metal 

detectors installed at the school? 

 

Mr. Brandt responded that the school has had enhanced security protocols but have not looked into 

the need for metal detectors. 

 

Student Off Camera – They requested to hang flags that represented them and were told they could 

not hang them because it was a fire hazard. 

 

Dr. Milaschewski responded he will be meeting with the team and the student group to find out the 

background on why they were told they couldn’t hang the flags and meet with students to get this 

resolved. 

 



  

Mr. Brandt moved, second by Mrs. Gaffen, to take E4 out of order.  The vote carried 5-0. Mr. 
Brandt, Mrs. Gaffen, Ms. McLaughlin, Mrs. Nazzaro, and Mr. Robinson.  
 

4.  PAIR Liaison Assignment 

 

Dr. Chatterjee, the Town of Reading’s Director of Equity and Social Justice, based out of the Reading 

Public Library, will be creating an advisory board, including people from across all town departments 

including the schools, including students. The advisory board will host a fundraiser at Washington 

Park on Juneteenth. 

 

Mr. Brandt opened it up to ask if any school committee members are interested in being a liaison for 

the Equity and Social Justice committee. Mrs. Gaffen volunteered.  Mr. Brandt said he may attend as 

well. Mr. Brandt suggested passing Mrs. Gaffen’s name on as the official recommendation to the 

Chair for appointment. 

 

3. Policy of JFBB (School Choice) 

 

Mrs. Gaffen reported out on the Policy Subcommittee meeting of May 11th.  They reviewed edits of 

Policy JFBB by Susan Bottan.  They also compared it to the Massachusetts School Committee Policy 

Manual and entered into a discussion on the protected classes.  They chose to add homelessness to 

bullet number 5 in the Policy and that addition was approved by legal counsel as well. 

 

Mr. Brandt mentioned legal counsel also recommended removal of various references at the bottom 

of the Policy and only retain 76.12B in the school choice packet.   

 

Mr. Brandt moved, second by Mrs. Nazzaro, to approve Policy JFBB as presented in the packet 
and revised on the floor.   

 

Mrs. Gaffen raised a point that there was a discussion on the sixth bullet leaving the language if a 

family already has a child in the district, the sibling will automatically get a spot and not have to 

apply through the lottery if space is available.  It was agreed that is the intent. 

 

The vote carried 5-0. Mr. Brandt, Mrs. Gaffen, Ms. McLaughlin, Mrs. Nazzaro, and Mr. 
Robinson. 

 

D.  Old Business 

1.  RMHS Track Naming Advisory Committee 

 

Mr. Brandt outlined the recommendation in the packet including the process of soliciting the 

Committee members.  He reminded the Committee that we have already appointed Chuck Robinson 

to the Advisory Committee to fill the School Committee role.  The other members and their roles are 

recommended to be: 

 

a. Mr. Kevin Tracey – RMHS Principal – as a non-voting Consultant to the Advisory Committee. 



  

b. Olivia Rotundo – Student Representative. 

c. Christine Keller – Historical Committee Representative. 

d. Carlo Bacci – Select Board Representative. 

e. John Means – Local Business Leader Representative. 

 

Mr. Brandt moved, seconded by Mr. Robinson to approve the membership of the RMHS Track 
Naming Committee as detailed in the packet. The vote carried 5-0. Mr. Brandt, Mrs. Gaffen, 
Ms. McLaughlin, Mrs. Nazzaro, and Mr. Robinson. 

 

2. FY23 Budget and Capital Plan Final Approval 

 

Susan Bottan presented that included in packet is recommendation to put forward a final vote on 

the operating budget of $51,783,361.00 and a capital budget of $122,000. 

 

Ms. Gaffen posed question of RISE Playground and the possible moving of the RISE Preschool to 

another location, therefore leaving a preschool playground at RMHS, asking how that falls into 

future plans. 

 

Ms. Bottan mentioned if the Killam Elementary new building will be housing the RISE Preschool, we 

will repurpose the current RISE Preschool area.  The first year the $12k is designated for design only. 

We won’t know phase 2 until further in the year. Proposal is to engage an architect to design first, 

and then hold to the end of FY ’23. 

 

Mr. Brandt posed the question now that ARPA Funds were approved.  How does that money flow?  

Ms. Bottan mentioned that the money was set up by the town in a revolving account and provided 

the Finance Dept with the account number to allow for the use of the funds to place the initial order 

for the curriculum order to take us through the next school year. 

 

Sherilla Lestrade – Asked a follow up question about the $12K for the RISE Preschool design.  She 

also mentioned that moving the Preschool playground would be good as it is distracting for the High 

School students. 

 

Mr. Brandt moved, seconded by Mr. Robinson, to approve the final FY23 operating and capital 
budgets as appropriated by annual town meeting in April 2022. The vote carried 5-0. Mr. 
Brandt, Mrs. Gaffen, Ms. McLaughlin, Mrs. Nazzaro, and Mr. Robinson. 
 

Mrs. Nazzaro moved, seconded by Mr. Robinson to adjourn. The vote carried 5-0. Mr. Brandt, 
Mrs. Gaffen, Ms. McLaughlin, Mrs. Nazzaro, and Mr. Robinson. 

 

Meeting adjourned. 

 

Link to meeting video: School Committee 05-26-2022 - YouTube 

 

























 

 

 

 

 

TO:  Reading School Committee 

FROM:  Susan Bottan, Director of Finance and Operations 

DATE:  June 9, 2022 

RE:  Donation to Reading Memorial High School 

 

 

Principal Kevin Tracey and Science Department Head Mary Anne Lynn respectfully ask that the School 

Committee accept the following generous donations to the Reading Memorial High School from Reading 

resident Rebecca Ward: 

 

Dear School Committee, 

We are interested in donating the two following items to Reading Memorial High School:  

1. 3D printer.  The donation will be used by the Science Department for the Intro to Engineering 

Design classes 

2. Airbrush compressor with airbrush kit.   The donation will be used by the Fine and Performing 

Arts Department. 

  

Best, 

Rebecca Ward 

21 Kingston St. 

Reading, MA 01867 

 

 

 

Reading Public Schools 
Instilling a joy of learning and inspiring the innovative leaders of tomorrow 82 Oakland Road 

Reading, MA 01867 
Phone: 781-944-5800 

Fax: 781-942-9149 



















































































































 

Reading Public Schools 

Instilling a joy of learning and inspiring the innovative leaders of tomorrow 
82 Oakland Road 

Reading, MA 01867 
Phone: 781-944-5800 

Fax: 781-942-9149 

 

 
 
 
STEM Curriculum Coordinator, Heather Leonard, will be sharing information about the award of 
a competitive DESE fiscal program, Accelerating Mathematics Instruction for Students 2022-
2023.  The award of $119,748.00 will fund year 1 of implementation of the Illustrative Math 
curriculum for grades K-2 including print materials, digital licenses, and professional 
development.  Additionally, it will fund some year 2 implementation efforts for grades 3-6 
including some print resources and professional learning opportunities. 
 



  

Reading Public Schools 

Instilling a joy of learning and inspiring the innovative leaders of tomorrow 
82 Oakland Road 
Reading, MA 01867 
Phone: 781-944-5800 
Fax: 781-942-9149 

 

 

 

At the June 9, 2022 School Committee meeting, we will present an update from the Learning 
and Teaching Office.  This update will include a preview of the work and tasks planned for the 
upcoming school year to enhance and improve learning and teaching for our students.  The 
update will also include information about curriculum and instruction, assessment, curriculum 
review, and professional development that occurred during the 2021-22 school year.   
 



Administrative Offices 
82 Oakland Road 

Reading, MA  01867 
781 944-5800 

 

  
READING SCHOOL COMMITTEE 

 
Thomas Wise Chair 

Shawn Brandt Vice-Chair  
 

Erin Gaffen 
Sarah McLaughlin 

Carla Nazzaro 
Charles Robinson 

 
Thomas Milaschewski, Ed.D. 

Superintendent of Schools 
 

TO:  Reading School Committee 

FROM:  Thomas Wise, Reading School Committee Chair 

DATE:  June 7, 2022 

TOPIC:  Killam:  School Building Committee Appointment Committee Background and Discussion 

At our meeting on the 9th of June, we will discuss the process of appointing the Killam School Building Committee for the 

Killam project.  We have a few regulations, bylaws, and time driven deliverables to work between as we determine the 

who, when and how the committee will be formed.  The purpose of this memo is to provide the preliminary background 

so that we can engage in a fruitful discussion and end up on some recommendations.  At the current time, the 

appointment committee of the Killam School Building Committee is scheduled to meet on Monday, the 13th at 5:30 p.m. 

and I wanted to discuss this with the entire School Committee prior to that meeting. 

MGL Chapter 71, Section 68 

The first factor to consider, and the highest in legal authority, is Mass General Law.  MGL Chapter 71, Section 68 outlines 

the requirements for School Committees to maintain school buildings and provide transportation to those school 

buildings at various distances and age groups.  Additionally, it includes this final clause: 

Whenever a town shall undertake to provide a schoolhouse, the town shall appoint at least one 

member of the school committee, or its designee, to serve on the agency, board or committee to 

which the planning and construction or other acquisition of such schoolhouse is delegated. 

Thus, at a minimum, we will need to appoint one member of the School Committee to the Killam School Building 

Committee.  We may choose to advocate for another member or two, but we will explore that throughout this memo. 

963 CMR 2.00 

The next authority to consider is 963 CMR 2.00 – Massachusetts School Building Authority – School Building Grant 

Program.  Since we have applied and been accepted into the MSBA Grant Program, we are bound by their regulations.  

Within the regulation, Section 2.10.3 outlines the Killam School Building Committee composition requirements, approval 

process and change notification process. The sub sections of that regulation are as follows (bolding by me and not in the 

regulation itself): 

(a) The Eligible Applicant shall formulate a school building committee for the purpose of generally 

monitoring the Application process and to advise the Eligible Applicant during the construction of an 

Approved Project. 

(b) [T]he school building committee shall be formed in accordance with the provisions of the Eligible 

Applicant’s local charter and/or by-laws and it is recommended that the city, town, regional school 



district, or independent agricultural and technical school make a reasonable effort to include one or 

more of the following individuals: the local chief executive officer of the Eligible Applicant, or, in the 

case of a town whose local chief executive officer is a multi-party body, said body may elect one of its 

members to serve on the school building committee; the town administrator, town manager, or city 

manager, where applicable; at least one member of the school committee, as required by M.G.L. c. 71, § 

68; the superintendent of schools; the local official responsible for building maintenance; a 

representative of the office or body authorized by law to construct school buildings in that city, town or 

regional school district, or for that independent agricultural and technical school; the school principal 

from the subject school; a member who has knowledge of the educational mission and function of the 

facility; a local budget official or member of the local finance committee; members of the community 

with architecture, engineering and/or construction experience to provide advice relative to the effect of 

the Proposed Project on the community and to examine building design and construction in terms of its 

constructability 

€ The Authority may hold “best practices” information sessions at varying geographic locations in the 

Commonwealth for the purposes of keeping school building committees up to date on regulatory and 

policy activities of the Authority. 

(d) The Eligible Applicant shall submit to the Authority for its approval, a written statement describing 

the composition of the school building committee and the role of the school building committee in 

monitoring the Application process and advising the Eligible Applicant during the construction of the 

Approved Project. The written statement shall be in a format prescribed by the Authority. 

€ The Authority shall approve the composition and role of the school building committee which 

approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Authority’s approval will be based on several factors, 

including, but not limited to: 

1. past performance of the school building committee, the building committee, whether 

temporary or permanent, or any other committee responsible for the oversight, management, or 

administration of the construction of public buildings, the composition of the school building 

committee and qualifications of its individual members, the powers and duties of the school 

building committee; and the school building committee’s procedures for conducting its meetings; 

and 

2. the extent to which there is representation of the municipal government, school district 

personnel with management, educational and maintenance expertise, and representation of 

members of the local community with design and construction experience. 

After the approval of the school building committee by the Authority, if any, the Eligible Applicant 

shall notify the Authority in writing within 20 calendar days of any changes to the membership or the 

duties of said committee. The Eligible Applicant shall make a reasonable effort to ensure the 

continuity of membership of the school building committee throughout the life of an Approved 

Project. 

One key thing the regulation does not cover is voting rights.  However, the documentation provided by the MSBA allows 

for the Committee to be formed with both voting and non-voting members.  This will be critical as we work to comply 

with the Reading ByLaws as well. 

Reading General ByLaw 

Within the Reading General ByLaw, the Permanent Building Committee is outlined and defined in Section 3.3.6.  In 

addition to defining the members of the Permanent Building Committee, this section of the General ByLaw also outlines 

the process of establishing building committees.  The key sections are as follows: 



… Permanent and Temporary Members of the Permanent Building Committee shall be appointed by an 

Appointment Committee consisting of the Chair of the Select Board, the Chair of the School Committee 

and the Town Moderator. … 

The Permanent Building Committee shall adopt a formal building project application process to be 

followed in order for any proposed project to be considered for evaluation and possible administration. 

The Permanent Building Committee shall evaluate only Project Applications forwarded by the School 

Committee, the Select Board or the Library Trustees (the “Sponsoring Agency”). All Sponsoring Agencies 

shall be notified of this application process and any revisions to it in a timely manner after their 

adoption. 

The Permanent Building Committee shall review and administer major Town building design studies 

and construction projects having expected aggregate costs of $1,500,000 or more, but may decline 

administration of Projects with little or no actual construction. The Permanent Building Committee’s 

jurisdiction shall not extend to projects of the Reading Municipal Light Department. The Permanent 

Building Committee shall present their project evaluations to Town Meeting at the request of the 

Sponsoring Agency for consideration and approval. 

Once Town Meeting has authorized funds for a Project, the Appointment Committee shall add 

Temporary Members to the Permanent Building Committee for such Project. Temporary Members shall 

have the same participation and voting rights as Permanent Members on matters affecting the 

particular Project for which they were appointed. Temporary Members shall be registered voters of the 

Town, nominated by the Sponsoring Agency, and shall serve only for the time during which the 

Permanent Building Committee is exercising its functions with respect to such Project. In the event that a 

particular project is subject to participant requirements of a state funding authority, the Appointment 

Committee may appoint additional Temporary members to the Permanent Building Committee for 

that project; provided, however, that, in no event, shall the aggregate number of Permanent and 

Temporary Members for a particular project exceed nine (9). Quorum requirements for the Permanent 

Building Committee shall be the majority of the Permanent and Temporary Members for a particular 

project. 

In the case of Killam, the School Committee is the Sponsoring Agency.  We, through work with Joe Huggins, Kevin 

Cabuzzi, Town Manager Fidel Maltez, Superintendent Thomas Milaschewski, and I have submitted our application to the 

Permanent Building Committee.  Our next obligation is to submit nominations for Temporary Members to the 

Appointment Committee for the formation of the Killam School Building Committee.   

If we look through the requirements of the MSBA in concert with the requirements of the Town of Reading ByLaws, I 

suggest we can only nominate four voting members.  However, since many of the people that will fill the roles the MSBA 

has required, do not live in Reading, that should not be a problem.  We can then nominate additional non-voting 

members as consultants, like how we built the RMHS Track Naming Committee with Kevin Tracey as a consultant. 

Timing of Killam School Building Committee Creation 

The Town of Reading Bylaw says the Appointment Committee shall add Temporary Members to the Permanent Building 

Committee once Town Meeting has authorized funds for a Project.  However, in their timeline for this phase of the 

Project, the MSBA requires documentation about the membership of the Killam School Building Committee by July 31, 

2022. 

In working through this with Town Counsel and current Permanent Building Member Gregory Stepler, Town Manager 

Fidel Maltez provided the following background: 

I spoke about it to Town Counsel today and we agreed that it was grey area. In all reality, the school 

building committee has nothing to do until Town Meeting votes the $2.2 Million funds for the 



feasibility/schematic design. At that point, Town Meeting will have clearly voted for the project. It is a 

little awkward, because the deadline of creating the school building committee is before November Town 

Meeting. I could ask the MSBA if we could formally appoint the School Building Committee after the 

November vote, but that wasn’t the recommendation from Town Counsel. We agreed today that it was a 

technicality and not really a violation. If Town Meeting doesn’t approve the $2.2 Million, the School 

building committee would dissolve. 

I spoke to Greg Stepler, who is in Town Meeting and the Permanent Building Committee. He was involved 

in making the bylaw. He said the intent of that language was to prevent “unrealistic” projects from 

coming to the Permanent Building Committee. In other words, if someone wanted to build something but 

didn’t have approved funds or Town Meeting support, the Permanent Building could use this language to 

not take on the project. We all agree that the Killam School is not like this. 

Additionally, in further discussions, it was agreed that the Gienapp demographic study and analysis, which was 

authorized by Town Meeting, satisfies the intent of the ByLaw.  While that authorization wasn’t for more than 

$1,500,000, we know the full cost will be so and the MSBA approval of our participation in the process further 

validates this as a real project rather than speculative or unrealistic. 

Therefore, the recommendation is to form the Killam School Building Committee now, at least prior to the July 

31st, 2022, deadline and empower them after Town Meeting has appropriated the funds for the Feasibility 

Study, presuming they do.  As outlined above, if Town Meeting does not appropriate the funds, the Killam 

School Building Committee simply dissolves. 

Role of Killam School Building Committee vs. School Committee 

The role of the Killam School Building Committee will be in alignment with that of the Permanent Building Committee.  

Specifically, it will be to “review and administer major Town building design studies and construction projects having 

expected aggregate costs of $1,500,000 or more.”  They are not the marketing or advocacy arm of this project.  That role 

will still sit with the School Committee as we move forward with Town Meeting and, hopefully, the eventual town wide 

vote.   

Further, since this is the first time this portion of the General ByLaw is being executed, it will be important that we stay 

tightly aligned with the Killam School Building Committee, so we make sure nothing falls through the cracks.  It will also 

be important that our feedback, the feedback of the administration, and that of the greater community is incorporated 

into the design appropriately. 

Summary Recommendation for Discussion 

Given all of the above, the following are the roles, people, and recommendations of voting or non-voting that I would 

like us to discuss and ultimately nominate to the Appointment Committee of the Permanent Building Committee: 

Role Person Voting/Non-Voting Resident 

Chief Executive Officer / Select Board 

Member 

Member Elected by Select Board Voting Yes 

Town Manager Fidel Maltez Non-Voting No 

School Committee Member (min of 1) To be Discussed Voting Yes 

Superintendent Thomas Milaschewski Non-Voting No 

Local Official Responsible for Building 

Maintenance 

Joe Huggins Non-Voting No 



Representative of the Office or Body 

authorized by law to construct School 

Buildings 

TBD TBD TBD 

School Principal Sarah Leveque Non-Voting No 

A member with knowledge of the 

Educational Mission and Function of 

Killam 

A member of Killam Staff TBD TBD 

Local Budget Official or Finance 

Committee Member 

Endri Kume, Town Treasurer Voting Yes 

Members of the Community with 

Architecture, Engineering or Construction 

Experience 

The Permanent Building Committee Voting Yes 

As we review the above, we really have open spot for a voting member that may be filled by people in the categories 

marked with a TBD in the Voting/Non-Voting and Resident columns. That is because we will have one Select Board 

member, at least one School Committee member, and the Town Treasurer all as Voting Residents of the Town. The 

suggestion of the appointment of Endri Kume to the Local Budget Official role was provided by the Town Manager, Fidel 

Maltez, as Endri oversees all borrowing and monitoring of debt and cash for the Town and reports to Sharon Angstrom 

while also being a Town Resident. 

I have asked for Legal Counsel to provide feedback on the “Representative of the Office or Body authorize by law to 

construct School Buildings” membership on the Committee.  Initial feedback is that the Body in question is the School 

Committee.  So, this could be the second School Committee seat, or if the Killam staff member is a resident, that would 

provide the fourth member of the Killam School Building Committee.  

Additionally, we do not have to fill every role as they are recommended roles only.  There is nothing that prevents us 

from having more than one person per category, but we also do not want the committee to get too large.  Alternatively, 

we can choose to have one member fill more than one spot. Finally, as outlined in the General Bylaw, quorum would be 

defined only by the voting members of the Committee; the Permanent Building Committee members plus the four 

Temporary Members nominated by the School Committee and appointed by the Appointing Committee. 

Please be prepared to discuss this, including asking any questions you may have, during our meeting on Thursday. 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2022       Page 1 of 12 

End-of -Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent  
 

 

Superintendent: Dr. Thomas Milaschewski       06-08-2022 

Evaluator:  Reading School Committee       06-08-2022 

 Name Signature  Date 

Step 1: Assess Progress Toward Goals ( Reference performance goals; check one for each set of goal[s].) 

Professional Practice Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress  Met  Exceeded 

Student Learning Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress  Met  Exceeded 

District Improvement Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress  Met  Exceeded 

 

Step 2: Assess Performance on Standards ( Reference Performance Ratings per Standard; check one box for each Standard.) 
 

Unsatisfactory = Performance on a standard or overall has not significantly improved following a rating of Needs Improvement, or performance is consistently 
below the requirements of a standard or overall and is considered inadequate, or both. 

Needs Improvement/Developing = Performance on a standard or overall is below the requirements of a standard or overall but is not considered to be 
Unsatisfactory at the time. Improvement is necessary and expected.  

Proficient = Proficient practice is understood to be fully satisfactory. This is the rigorous expected level of performance. 

Exemplary = A rating of Exemplary indicates that practice significantly exceeds Proficient and could serve as a model of practice regionally or statewide. 

U
n

sa
ti

sf
ac

to
ry

 

N
ee

d
s 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 

P
ro

fi
ci

en
t 

E
xe

m
p

la
ry

 

Standard I: Instructional Leadership     

Standard II: Management and Operations      

Standard III: Family and Community Engagement      

Standard IV: Professional Culture     



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2022       Page 2 of 12 

End-of -Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent  
 

Step 3: Rate Overall Summative Performance ( Based on Step 1 and Step 2 ratings; check one.) 

 Unsatisfactory  Needs Improvement              Proficient  Exemplary 

 

Step 4: Add Evaluator Comments 

Comments and analysis are recommended for any rating but are required for an overall summative rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory. 

Comments: 
Overall, the Committee as a whole gives Dr. Milaschewski very high marks for his first year on the job.  Some comments include: 

- Dr. Milaschewski has had an outstanding first year in the role. While the typical advice is not to try to make too much change in the early days in a 
leadership role, the culture established by Dr. Milaschewski and the team, and the focus on doing nearly everything in an open, collaborative way, has 
granted him license to begin to make meaningful, positive change for our district. 

- He is an exemplary leader, collaborator, and communicator. He helped form a solid team at central office, gave voice to district leaders, and continually 
displays support for educators. He is eager for and open to feedback and shows a willingness to adapt and change based on that feedback. He takes 
the time to highlight the positives and communicates effectively, even about more challenging subjects. 

- Dr. M’s commitment to the core values of collaboration, equity, and excellence - as expressed in his Superintendent Entry Plan - can be clearly seen 
throughout his leadership of RPS. 

- Dr. M brings a high-level of knowledge and expertise to his role, when paired with his core strengths of data-informed decision making and 
communication it results in amazing things. I’m excited to see our district transform under Dr. M’s leadership over the coming years. 

- Dr. Milaschewski is the “right leader at the right time” for Reading. He is a thoughtful leader who collaborates with all stakeholders, gathers and 
synthesizes data and then implements processes that will improve outcomes. He has put together an executive staff who is fiercely loyal to him and 
dedicated to excellence. He builds trust with staff, students and parents and welcomes and appreciates differing points of view. He has made many 
positive changes and has created a feeling of hopeful anticipation 

- Dr. Milaschewski is a gift to our town and the improvements he makes in our district will be a part of his professional story. 
- Dr. Milaschewski’ s ability to listen and act has been very commendable and exciting for our district.  He knows how to address the low hanging fruit as 

well as tackle the difficult and complex issues.  His collaboration with all the stakeholders in town has been handled like a seasoned veteran from the 
Budget, to Killam, to Town Meeting, to ARPA requests etc.….  In none of these examples has he “talked at” anyone rather he has thoughtfully explained 
his reasoning and decision-making process. 

- He has started his career here in Reading in a very strong way. His collaborative nature brings people in. His willingness to roll up his sleeves and dive 
into a classroom with Students and Teacher is appreciated by so many staff members. He has quite literally brought a breath of fresh air. 

- Milaschewski sets the bar very high for himself and I appreciate that. He walks it and talks it. He analyzes the data, collaboratively works on solutions, 
and builds up the capacity of his team. He is the leader Reading Public Schools needs now and I appreciate being able to work with him. 

  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2022       Page 3 of 12 

Superintendent’s Performance Goals  
 

 
Superintendents must identify at least one student learning goal, one professional practice goal, and two to four district 
improvement goals. Goals should be SMART and aligned to at least one focus Indicator from the Standards for Effective 
Administrative Leadership. 

D
id

 N
o

t 
M

ee
t 

S
o

m
e 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 

M
et

 

E
xc

ee
d

ed
 

Goals Focus Indicator(s) Description 

Student Learning Goal 
II-B Coaching, Developing, and Supporting Principals . Design and 

implement a district strategy for coaching, supporting, and developing 
principal talent. 

     

Professional Practice 
Goal 

III-C New Superintendent Induction Program . Develop skills in strategy 
development, data analysis, and instructional leadership by actively 
engaging in the first year of the New Superintendent Induction Program. 

     

District Improvement 
Goal 1 

I-E, IV-E Effective Entry and Direction Setting . By late spring, the district will have 
broad recognition by key stakeholder groups about the district’s most critical 
needs and will have a widely-understood process underway to identify the 
strategies and goals that will address those needs most effectively, and the 
measures that will be used to assess progress. 

     

District Improvement 
Goal 2 

II-A, IV-A Maintaining Momentum During the Transition . Keep the district moving 
forward during this year’s transition in leadership by working with principals 
and other district leaders to ensure that meaningful progress is made on 
critical district and school goals. 

     

 

Standards and Indicators for Effective Administrative Leadership 

Superintendents should identify 1-2 focus Indicators per Standard aligned to their goals. 

I. Instructional Leadership II. Management & Operations III. Family & Community Engagement IV. Professional Culture 

I-A. Curriculum  

I-B. Instruction 

I-C. Assessment 

I-D. Evaluation 

I-E. Data-Informed Decision Making 

I-F. Student Learning 

II-A. Environment 

II-B. HR Management and Development 

II-C. Scheduling & Management Information 

Systems 

II-D. Law, Ethics and Policies 

II-E. Fiscal Systems 

III-A. Engagement 

III-B. Sharing Responsibility 

III-C. Communication 

III-D. Family Concerns 

 

IV-A. Commitment to High Standards 

IV-B. Cultural Proficiency 

IV-C. Communication 

IV-D. Continuous Learning 

IV-E. Shared Vision 

IV-F. Managing Conflict 

  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2022       Page 4 of 12 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard I:  Instructional Leadership  
 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

I-A. Curriculum: Ensures that all instructional staff design effective and rigorous standards-based units of instruction consisting of 
well-structured lessons with measureable outcomes. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-B. Instruction: Ensures that practices in all settings reflect high expectations regarding content and quality of effort and work, 
engage all students, and are personalized to accommodate diverse learning styles, needs, interests, and levels of readiness. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-C. Assessment: Ensures that all principals and administrators facilitate practices that propel personnel to use a variety of formal and 
informal methods and assessments to measure student learning, growth, and understanding and make necessary adjustments to 
their practice when students are not learning. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-D. Evaluation: Ensures effective and timely supervision and evaluation of all staff in alignment with state regulations and contract 
provisions. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-E. Data-Informed Decision Making: Uses multiple sources of evidence related to student learning—including state, district, and 
school assessment results and growth data—to inform school and district goals and improve organizational performance, educator 
effectiveness, and student learning. 

   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-F. Student Learning: Demonstrates expected impact on student learning based on multiple measures of student learning, growth, 
and achievement, including student progress on common assessments and statewide student growth measures where available. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

The Student Learning Indicator does not have corresponding 
descriptions of practice. Evidence of impact on student 

learning based on multiple measures of student learning, 
growth, and achievement must be taken into account when 

determining a performance rating for this Standard. 

OVERALL Rating for Standard I: Instructional Leader ship 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by cultivating a shared vision that 
makes powerful teaching and learning the central focus of schooling. 

    

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

 
The committee noted quite a few impressive areas of strength in this category, including: 

- We have dramatically accelerated the progress in this area, and have built an excellent foundation to measure the impact of the many instructional and 
programmatic changes already under way and in the works. 

- His report of entry findings was exceedingly thorough and reflected a clear understanding of the strengths and areas for improvement within our schools. 
It is clear that he recognizes the importance and value of data-informed decision making. 

- We have significant data deserts within RPS. Where we are lacking data, Dr. M and his team created a path forward, a clear plan for filling in these holes, 
and established a process for systematically and frequently reviewing district-level data. 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2022       Page 5 of 12 

- Thoughtful recommendation to School Committee to elect moving forward with School Choice based on a thorough analysis of available student seats, 
impact on school revenue and budgets. 

- Our struggles with reading and literacy have been problematic for too long - having MCAS data was helpful when justifying the need for a change in 
literacy curriculum. The numbers tell a story and help us make informed decisions. In a truly brief time, the Superintendent was able to identify district 
issues with literacy, formulate a solution and secure funding for an elementary school literacy curriculum. We had multiple teachers/principals/reading 
specialists and other staff present this new curriculum at a School Committee meeting with enormous smiles on their faces and had parents with tears of 
joy once funding was secured…this process succeeded because of collaborative and decisive leadership. 

- I certainly feel it evident in Dr. Milaschewski’ s leadership style in that he pulls data from many sources and individuals before he makes or recommends 
decisions.  He does not do things alone and he has the self-confidence and intelligence to rely on all stakeholders before leading a recommendation or 
decision.  Recent examples were the ARC Core Curriculum and School choice decisions.  Both required a lot of complex data review and collective work 
by many, and I feel Dr. Milaschewski handled each process masterfully. 

- With respect to Data Informed Decision Making, I give Dr. Milaschewski high grades overall.  An example of what has happened as a result of his, and 
that of his team’s analysis include: Implementation of the February and April vacation academies with targeted students based on their MCAS and District 
Measures. 

 

Many members of the Committee noted they are looking forward to the improvements already planned as well.  Some key comments here include: 

- While it’s too early to evaluate how well the team will assess and respond to data, the investments being made are the proper first step and I was 
encouraged by the administration’s creativity in funding additional time for the data specialist position. 

- It is also evident that RPS needs even more and even better methods of collecting data. Next year will see additional changes, including increasing the 
data specialist hours, the adoption of i-Ready for math and ELA assessments, the implementation of the new ARC Core literacy curriculum in grades 3-5, 
the continued implementation of the new Illustrative Math in grades K-2, and the creation of the Academic Support Center at RMHS. I am eager to see 
the data from these, as well as further exploration of our middle and high school schedules, how to continue to increase time on learning, and how to 
increase rigor within our schools while still balancing the needs of all learners. 

- I am looking forward to the launching of i-Ready Common assessment at the middle school level for both Math and ELA. It will identify how students are 
progressing towards grade-level standards and will identify areas where targeted interventions and supports are needed. This is an area where the district 
is lacking so seeing it addressed so promptly is encouraging. 

- I am looking forward to the data of increased outcomes at the high school when tiered supports are put in place. 

- To move this to exemplary, we need to implement more regular data capture, data teams and adjusted instruction aligned with the data. This is 
happening in some pockets, but it needs to be systemized across the district and appropriate professional development for the Principals and Teachers 
needs to be put in place. I expect this will be an addition to our existing Student Support Teams once the infrastructure is in place. 

  Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard II : Management & Operations  
 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

II-A. Environment: Develops and executes effective plans, procedures, routines, and operational systems to address a full range of 
safety, health, emotional, and social needs. 

   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2022       Page 6 of 12 

II-B. Human Resources Management and Development: Implements a cohesive approach to recruiting, hiring, induction, 
development, and career growth that promotes high-quality and effective practice. 

   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

II-C. Scheduling and Management Information Systems : Uses systems to ensure optimal use of data and time for teaching, 
learning, and collaboration, minimizing disruptions and distractions for school-level staff.  
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

II-D. Law, Ethics, and Policies: Understands and complies with state and federal laws and mandates, school committee policies, 
collective bargaining agreements, and ethical guidelines. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

II-E. Fiscal Systems: Develops a budget that supports the district’s vision, mission, and goals; allocates and manages expenditures 
consistent with district- and school-level goals and available resources.  
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

OVERALL Rating for Standard II: Management & Operat ions 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by ensuring a safe, efficient, and 
effective learning environment, using resources to implement appropriate curriculum, staffing, and scheduling. 

    

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

Overall, this is another category that Dr. Milaschewski did well overall.   

 

Strengths noted: 

- II-A: 
o It is worthy of recognition that in this year of tremendous leadership change for RPS, and continued upheaval due to the ongoing pandemic, Dr. 

Milaschewski established a strong, cohesive central office team. Collaboration is a definite strength of his. An obvious example is the ever-
evolving covid-repose systems and protocols that were needed to navigate this school year. Dr. Milaschewski relied on his team and collaboration 
with his district and community leaders to make the best decisions that he could for the district. I believe the administration’s response to covid 
kept more students in school while still addressing the health needs of students and staff. He also was able to show his ability to adapt and 
remain flexible based on changes in data. 

o Overall, Dr. M and the district leadership team have displayed an ability to be nimble and flexible in the approach to the shifting needs of RPS 
during the pandemic. Dr. M has been creative and responsive with resourcing, particularly regarding the needs to support undue burden on 
school nurses and implemented the use of a float nurse to support the district nursing team. Test and stay was stood up quickly early in the 
school year allowing a safe return back to school buildings in the Fall. 

o Fostering an environment that is safe and inclusive for all - executive functioning supports, expanded team chair role and instituted program 
reviews, solicited feedback and input from diverse group of key stakeholders to inform the priorities in the FY23 budget process such as the 
increased school counselor roles, academic support center at RMHS is prioritized. 

o The enhancements made to our METCO program have been remarkable. The introduction of late busses allows for students to be engaged in 
our community outside of the school day in extracurricular activities. Re-vamping of bus routes/pickups has been modified to decrease students 
travel time. The increase of student enrollment for next year and the introduction of METCO Director/Adjustment Counselor roles at each 
elementary school will provide social-emotional support for all students and a staff METCO presence in each building. These changes are 
exciting, innovative, and just the beginning. 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2022       Page 7 of 12 

o With the COVID-19 response he worked very well with the Director of Nurses and Town staff to make the best and safest decisions for students.  
I also felt as if Dr. Milaschewski’ s approach to the COVID-19 response brought a new calmness and confidence in what the District was doing. 

o Dr. Milaschewski was great at working with the Director of Nurses throughout the year. He advocated on behalf of her to add nursing staff early in 
the year and again for next year. He also worked quite effectively with her and the Public Health Director of the Town of Reading with respect to 
the mask removal at the end of February. The collaborative, consensus building approach he took there was yet another example of his style. 

o Dr. Milaschewski observed and listened to his staff as he and his team were building the budget for FY23. That is most evident in the huge 
investment in Social Emotional needs of our students. We see that with the Adjustment Counselors at the Elementary and High School Level as 
well as the expansion of the Stepping Stones program at the High School. If students aren’t emotionally ready to learn, they won’t so this 
foundational investment is great to see. 

o The culture has done a complete 180. The casual conversations with staff as well as evidence provided by Dr. Milaschewski demonstrates his 
style of collaboration, his inclusiveness of teacher voice, his focus on principals as educational leaders and his constant presence is schools has 
been extraordinarily well received. 

- II-B: 
o One of the most important and lasting advances of this year will be the professionalization of our HR practices and approaches. The quality of 

recruitment materials, the consideration given to role descriptions and the creative approaches to identifying potential candidates conducted in 
concert with Michelle Roach have been huge steps forward and are critical in a difficult hiring environment. 

o The establishment of the principal PD structures will also be a significant boon for the district in coming years. As one of our departing principals 
likes to remind us, we have often failed to give them the support they need to be instructional leaders, and this PD approach (in concert with 
coming discussions about resources) should pay great dividends as we gain more experience and start to deliver really differentiated PD. 

o There have been many positive changes under Dr. Milaschewski and Ms. Roach to recruiting and hiring practices including how job openings are 
worded, where jobs are posted, pay-scale, onboarding after new employees are hired, and support for new hires. They creatively expanded our 
pool of substitutes during a time when most districts struggled significantly to fill this position. 

o Dr. M instituted a collaborative and communicative search process for significant District roles including the Wood End and Parker principal 
searches. 

o Dr. M designed a thoughtful, evidence-based approach to a district strategy for coaching, supporting, and developing principal talent. 
Implementation of the structures put into place is underway with the intent to carry practices forward next year in FY23. The emphasis placed on 
embedded professional development  to support continued learning is a significant and positive shift for RPS.  Examples of the high priority 
placed on professional development include: PD embedded into the structure put in place to support principals; highlighted as a critical element in 
rolling out the new literacy curriculum for K-5 in supporting our teachers growth; DLT classroom visits have also demonstrated commitment to 
embedded PD to support instructional growth. 

o His focus on meaningful and targeted professional development of teachers and cultivation/coaching of principals is refreshing to see. Coaching 
of principals was one aspect of Dr. Milaschewski’s interview process that intrigued me and made him stand out from the other candidates. I love 
the quote, “Cultivate and enhance instructional leadership skills in principals and watch student learning skyrocket.”  Dr. Milaschewski wants to 
focus principals on curriculum and instructional development rather than on building and operations management. Investing in staff development 
will enhance student learning and increase student achievement. 

o The budget increase was modest, but I was impressed with – to use the cliché – bang for the buck.  There were a lot of asks and they will all 
make the district better for students without huge spending increases.  I am particularly excited about the use of Fellows and I look forward  to 
hearing an update on it next year. 

o Dr. Milaschewski has expertly managed a highly effective HR Director through an ongoing process of significantly upgrading how we approach 
hiring, union matters and culture.  As I often say – our assets walk out the door every night.  Dr. Milaschewski gets this, and he understands that 
this has a direct impact on students and teaching and learning. 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2022       Page 8 of 12 

o On the Human Resources Management and Development front, Dr. Milaschewski and his team are off to a great start. Many, small, but 
noticeable changes have been implemented by Director of Human Resources Michelle Roach. Dr. Milaschewski has trusted her to make these 
change and they have benefited the District, even during a time when finding staff and filling vacancies is a far reaching problem. 

 

Noted areas for improvement and/or observations of what is to come in the future: 

- Where I feel there’s some opportunity for improvement is in the consistent execution of those identified plans and procedures across the district. 
Particularly with respect to covid response, we’ve seen inconsistent application of expectations around informing parents of positive cases, implementing 
targeted masking policies, return-to-school procedures, etc. Importantly, the SC opted not to implement any further expectations around masking based 
on the administration’s assurances that masking would be used on a targeted basis. This did not come to fruition, and any active decision to go away 
from this commitment was not communicated to the committee, or more importantly, parents who rely on proper information from the district to make the 
best decisions for their families. 

- I would have liked to have seen more follow-through on implementing mitigation strategies as case numbers have increased again this spring, explicit and 
more frequent communication to families, as well as indoor masking requirements for classroom bubbles. 

- Something that I feel is long overdue is assistant principals at the elementary level and I look forward to hearing Dr. Milaschewski’ s approach and 
recommendations on this. 

- Additionally, Dr. Milaschewski has commenced the process of coaching the Principals into educational leaders rather than merely operational managers. 
This is a critical lever to pull over the next few years as we drive for improvement across the district. I would like to see programs to develop more inhouse 
talent as we have a few interested parties in moving up into administration. Thus, it would be great to see Dr. Milaschewski and Michelle Roach work on 
such a program to grow our internal bench 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard II I: Family and Community 
Engagement  

 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

III-A. Engagement: Actively ensures that all families are welcome members of the classroom and school community and can contribute 
to the effectiveness of the classroom, school, district, and community. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

III-B. Sharing Responsibility: Continuously collaborates with families and community stakeholders to support student learning and 
development at home, school, and in the community.  

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

III-C. Communication: Engages in regular, two-way, culturally proficient communication with families and community stakeholders 
about student learning and performance. 
   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

III-D. Family Concerns: Addresses family and community concerns in an equitable, effective, and efficient manner. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

OVERALL Rating for Standard III: Family & Community  Engagement     



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2022       Page 9 of 12 

The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff through effective partnerships with 
families, community organizations, and other stakeholders that support the mission of the district and its schools. 

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

 

In this category, the Committee rated Dr. Milaschewski as Exemplary.  Some quotes include: 

- This area has been a home run for Dr. Milaschewski in year one. Multimodal district newsletters, multi-lingual content and frequent availability for 
stakeholders to meet personally all reflect a real commitment to strong communication. 

- In addition to committee meetings, our 1:1s, school visits and small group sessions have been very effective ways to share important updates as well as 
collect committee feedback. 

- Communication is an area where Dr. Milaschewski truly shines. From the onset, and in fact before he officially started, he strove to meet with as many 
stakeholders as possible, and that has continued throughout the year. He wisely spent time listening and quickly learned a great deal about the district 
and the people of the district. His tone, manner, and responsiveness help people to feel validated and heard. 

- Over the course of his first year he has visited a majority of classrooms, and after each visit he sent a personal note with detailed feedback for the 
educator. 

- Dr. M is a strong communicator and excels at making people feel valued and heard. When communicating with various stakeholders he is actively 
engaged, empathetic, open-minded, and respectful. 

- Dr. M has had the opportunity to make many presentations to town boards and committees on various high priority RPS matters, including state of the 
schools and FY23 budget requests at Fin Comm and Town Meeting; as well as discussion and advocacy for RPS funding at Reading ARPA Advisory 
Committee and Select Board. In each of these presentations he has consistently displayed clear, concise communication and data-informed decision 
making as well as being open and responsive to questions and feedback from stakeholders. 

- As is evident in observing how he managed his entry plan and roll out ¬¬− he is clearly effective with two-way communication. He reached out to all 
stakeholders in our community to gather information and history. He effectively processed that information and has developed a plan to propel the district 
forward. It is by listening to stakeholders and truly hearing what they are saying that helps him be an effective leader. 

- I don’t recall ever giving an “E” rating for any category and my first thought was to rate this as Proficient as my comparison was to past practices but after 
much reflection past practices should not be an indicator in my mind as communication has been exemplary and it should be attributable to the current 
superintendent’s performance on its own and not comparable to what I am used to. 

- His style is gracious and well received by virtually every staff member I have had the pleasure of seeing in action or talking with. He also has the innate 
ability to get down to the level of each student, whether at the high school or all the way down to RISE. I will never forget seeing his interaction with a 
REACH program student and they way he was able to engage in thoughtful yet challenging and affirming communication with that student. In doing so, he 
sets a high bar and demonstrates the way in which he wants the staff of the district to interact with ALL our students. 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard IV : Professional Culture  
 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

IV-A. Commitment to High Standards: Fosters a shared commitment to high standards of service, teaching, and learning with high 
expectations for achievement for all. 
   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2022       Page 10 of 12 

IV-B. Cultural Proficiency: Ensures that policies and practices enable staff members and students to interact effectively in a culturally 
diverse environment in which students’ backgrounds, identities, strengths, and challenges are respected. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

IV-C. Communication: Demonstrates strong interpersonal, written, and verbal communication skills. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

IV-D. Continuous Learning: Develops and nurtures a culture in which staff members are reflective about their practice and use student 
data, current research, best practices, and theory to continuously adapt practice and achieve improved results. Models these 
behaviors in his or her own practice. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

IV-E. Shared Vision: Successfully and continuously engages all stakeholders in the creation of a shared educational vision in which 
every student is prepared to succeed in postsecondary education and become a responsible citizen and global contributor. 
   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

IV-F. Managing Conflict: Employs strategies for responding to disagreement and dissent, constructively resolving conflict and building 
consensus throughout a district or school community. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

OVERALL Rating for Standard IV: Professional Cultur e 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by nurturing and sustaining a 
districtwide culture of reflective practice, high expectations, and continuous learning for staff. 

    

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

 
Yet another category in which the Committee rated Dr. Milaschewski very highly.  Some key comments from the individual reviews are: 

- IV-A 
o Another standout indicator for Dr. Milaschewski – he has demonstrated and modeled an understanding of the need for our district to raise its 

expectations for all stakeholders in order to achieve our shared vision and the degree of success Reading expects. 
o Dr. Milaschewski recognizes that the district can strive for equity and excellence, and that we do not need to sacrifice one for the other. He sets a 

high bar for student engagement and high expectations for all learners. 
o Some examples of steps that Dr. Milaschewski has taken thus far are increasing time on learning through vacation academies, the upcoming 

summer adventure offerings, offering new pathways at the high school through the dual enrollment program, and pursuing a new literacy 
curriculum for our elementary learners. 

o In his relatively brief tenure in RPS to date, Dr. M has displayed a firm commitment to high-standards for all learners. He worked with the district 
leadership team to expand time on learning including: implementing February and April vacation academies; expanded student summer support 
to a wider group of learners as well as including a full day option through a partnership with the YMCA; and expanded tutoring opportunities at 
each school building. Improvement and expansion of the METCO program has also been an area of significant focus. 

o The February and April vacation academies were a creative and cost-effective way to address learning deficiencies that were exacerbated by the 
pandemic.  The data will determine the effectiveness.  This is a great example of the districts commitment to equity and achieving excellence for 
all. 

o Dr. Milaschewski is not afraid to shoot for a high bar. To achieve that, he knows he needs to hold himself to a high bar and needs to foster the 
same mindset across the district. He has demonstrated this throughout the year when he looks at the data, presents to the committee, talks with 
principals and teachers and works with students. Thinking back to that conversation with the student in REACH, even that discussion was holding 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2022       Page 11 of 12 

a high bar for the student – asking him to do research, asking for evidence to back up his claims, engaging the teacher in part of the process, and 
maintaining joint accountability the next time they saw each other. It was a small example, but one that spoke to me about his expectations for 
EVERY student. 

o We have seen this commitment to high standards fostered across the leadership team and across the district. Whether it is a presentation on the 
MCAS scores in which we highlight areas where we need to do better or the Equity statement we went back to time and again throughout the 
year, the focus on ALL learners was evident. This culminated recently with the presentations to the School Committee, the Reading ARPA 
Advisory Committee and the Select Board about the new literacy curriculum – which was pursued so ALL students could achieve grade level (or 
higher) literacy levels. 

- IV-E 
o I think we made a lot of great progress in this area – the establishment of the district’s equity statement, an entry plan which captured very well 

the district’s strengths and opportunities, collaborative goal-setting sessions (including the leadership retreat) and other elements have 
demonstrated Dr. Milaschewski’s ability to facilitate such activities with a sense of shared ownership. 

o He has learned a remarkable amount in a brief period of time, and the thoroughness of his entry plan findings reflect this. I was grateful to see 
that he identified the areas for improvement while also celebrating the strengths of RPS. 

o Dr. Milaschewski identified equity and excellence as two Core Values for our district. The district created an equity statement. The process for 
creating this statement was collaborative and first began at the summer leadership seminar and continued once the school year began. All 
stakeholders had the opportunity to contribute to and mold this statement. It is our district statement, and we all play a role in ensuring its mission. 

o Dr. Milaschewski wasted no time in looking for ways to provide tuition free Full-day Kindergarten.  His collaboration with the committee and the 
town to find creative funding ways was commendable work during many other things that were going on.  There has been a lot of talk about this, 
and I appreciate Dr. Milaschewski’ s willingness to put talk to action.  We are not completely there yet but there are the workings of a plan in place 
which has been long overdue. 

 

Additionally, there were some key looking forward notes: 

- IV-A 
o Ongoing work will need to include (at a minimum): revamping the high school schedule, potentially revamping the middle school schedule, a 

closer examination of math pathways and offerings starting at grade 6, exploring how to better align academics between middle and high school, 
and continuing to expand offerings at RMHS for all levels of learners. 

o Moving forward I am looking forward to seeing a more assertive and timely path forward for expanding math pathways at the middle school level 
as well as expansion of  tracks and opportunities at the high school level. 

- IV-E 
o As we navigate a year where we will likely have less budget flexibility to accommodate new ideas and initiatives, how we use our shared vision to 

navigate the difficult conversations ahead will be critical. 
o Going forward, I hope to see the portrait of a graduate work incorporated more into district planning and visions. I anticipate more challenging 

conversations and decisions ahead, particularly around the confines of our budget, but I am confident that Dr. Milachewski will continue to 
address them in a collaborative and shared manner with the best interests of students in mind. 

o The Shared Vision is a work in progress, but the continual engagement of stakeholders has been impressive to behold.  Whether it is providing all 
parents and staff the ability to provide feedback prior to visiting each school or engaging search committees in the process of finding the best 
principal for Wood End or Parker, Dr. Milaschewski engages all stakeholders in the process.  While the Vision is not yet complete, and thus the 
Proficient rating, we have seen great strides throughout the year with many baby steps to improve our District. 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2022       Page 12 of 12 

 



2021-2022 Superintendent Summative Evaluation

McLaughlin, Sarah Nazarro, Carla Brandt, Shawn Gaffen, Erin Robinson, Chuck Wise, Thomas Rounded Average

Step 1: Professional Practice Goals 5 4 5 5 4 4 5

Step 1: Student Learning Goals 5 5 4 4 4 3 4

Step 1: District improvement Goals 4 5 4 5 4 4 4

Step 2: Standard I: Instructional Leadership 5 3 4 3 3 3 4

Step 2: Standard II: Management and Operations 4 4 3 3 3 4 4

Step 2: Standard III: Family and Community Engagement 5 3 4 4 3 4 4

Step 2: Standard IV: Professional Culture 4 4 4 4 3 4 4

Step 3: Overall 3 4 4 4 3 3 4

Student Learning Goal 4 5 5 4 4 4 3 4

Professional Practice Goal 3 5 4 5 5 4 4 5

District Improvement Goal 1 4 5 4 5 4 3 4

District Improvement Goal 2 4 5 5 5 4 5 5

Standard I: Instructional Leadership: Data-Informed Decision Making 4 3 3 3 3 3 3

Standard I: Instructional Leadership: Overall Rating 4 3 4 3 3 3 3

Standard II: Management & Operations: Environment 3 4 3 3 3 4 3

Standard II: Management & Operations: Human Resources Management and Development 4 4 3 3 3 3 3

Standard II: Management & Operations: Overall 3 4 3 3 3 4 3

Standard III: Family and Community Engagement: Communication 4 3 4 4 4 4 4

Standard III: Family and Community Engagement: Overall 4 3 4 4 4 4 4

Standard IV: Professional Culture: Commitment to High Standards 3 4 4 4 3 4 4

Standard IV: Professional Culture: Shared Vision 3 4 3 4 3 3 3

Standard IV: Professional Culture: Overall 3 4 4 4 3 4 4



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 1 of 7 

End-of -Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent  
 

 

Superintendent: Dr. Thomas Milaschewski             

Evaluator:  Shawn Brandt SMB 5/22/2022 

 Name Signature  Date 

Step 1: Assess Progress Toward Goals ( Reference performance goals; check one for each set of goal[s].) 

Professional Practice Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress  Met X Exceeded 

Student Learning Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress X Met  Exceeded 

District Improvement Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress X Met  Exceeded 

 

Step 2: Assess Performance on Standards ( Reference Performance Ratings per Standard; check one box for each Standard.) 
 

Unsatisfactory = Performance on a standard or overall has not significantly improved following a rating of Needs Improvement, or performance is consistently 
below the requirements of a standard or overall and is considered inadequate, or both. 

Needs Improvement/Developing = Performance on a standard or overall is below the requirements of a standard or overall but is not considered to be 
Unsatisfactory at the time. Improvement is necessary and expected.  

Proficient = Proficient practice is understood to be fully satisfactory. This is the rigorous expected level of performance. 

Exemplary = A rating of Exemplary indicates that practice significantly exceeds Proficient and could serve as a model of practice regionally or statewide. 

U
n

sa
ti

sf
ac

to
ry

 

N
ee

d
s 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 

P
ro

fi
ci

en
t 

E
xe

m
p

la
ry

 

Standard I: Instructional Leadership    X 

Standard II: Management and Operations    X  

Standard III: Family and Community Engagement     X 

Standard IV: Professional Culture    X 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 2 of 7 

End-of -Cycle Summative Evaluation Re port: Superintendent  
 

Step 3: Rate Overall Summative Performance ( Based on Step 1 and Step 2 ratings; check one.) 

 Unsatisfactory  Needs Improvement              Proficient X Exemplary 

 

Step 4: Add Evaluator Comments 

Comments and analysis are recommended for any rating but are required for an overall summative rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory. 

Comments: 

 

Dr. Milaschewski has had an outstanding first year in the role. While the typical advice is not to try to make too much change in the 
early days in a leadership role, the culture established by Dr. Milaschewski and the team, and the focus on doing nearly everything in 
an open, collaborative way, has granted him license to begin to make meaningful, positive change for our district. I am thrilled with 
the early returns from the selection of Dr. Milaschewski, and am excited by the prospect of his leadership guiding us through the 
additional critical decision points that will arise in coming years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 3 of 7 

  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 4 of 7 

Superintendent’s Performance Goals  
 

 
Superintendents must identify at least one student learning goal, one professional practice goal, and two to four district 
improvement goals. Goals should be SMART and aligned to at least one focus Indicator from the Standards for Effective 
Administrative Leadership. 

D
id

 N
o

t 
M

ee
t 

S
o

m
e 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 

M
et

 

E
xc

ee
d

ed
 

Goals Focus Indicator(s) Description 

Student Learning Goal 
II-B Coaching, Developing, and Supporting Principals . Design and 

implement a district strategy for coaching, supporting, and developing 
principal talent. 

   X  

Professional Practice 
Goal 

III-C New Superintendent Induction Program . Develop skills in strategy 
development, data analysis, and instructional leadership by actively 
engaging in the first year of the New Superintendent Induction Program. 

    X 

District Improvement 
Goal 1 

I-E, IV-E Effective Entry and Direction Setting . By late spring, the district will have 
broad recognition by key stakeholder groups about the district’s most critical 
needs and will have a widely-understood process underway to identify the 
strategies and goals that will address those needs most effectively, and the 
measures that will be used to assess progress. 

   X  

District Improvement 
Goal 2 

II-A, IV-A Maintaining Momentum During the Transition . Keep the district moving 
forward during this year’s transition in leadership by working with principals 
and other district leaders to ensure that meaningful progress is made on 
critical district and school goals. 

    X 

 

Standards and Indicators for Effective Administrative Leadership 

Superintendents should identify 1-2 focus Indicators per Standard aligned to their goals. 

I. Instructional Leadership II. Management & Operations III. Family & Community Engagement IV. Professional Culture 

I-A. Curriculum  

I-B. Instruction 

I-C. Assessment 

I-D. Evaluation 

I-E. Data-Informed Decision Making 

I-F. Student Learning 

II-A. Environment 

II-B. HR Management and Development 

II-C. Scheduling & Management Information 

Systems 

II-D. Law, Ethics and Policies 

II-E. Fiscal Systems 

III-A. Engagement 

III-B. Sharing Responsibility 

III-C. Communication 

III-D. Family Concerns 

 

IV-A. Commitment to High Standards 

IV-B. Cultural Proficiency 

IV-C. Communication 

IV-D. Continuous Learning 

IV-E. Shared Vision 

IV-F. Managing Conflict 

  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 5 of 7 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard I:  Instructional Leadership  
 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

I-A. Curriculum: Ensures that all instructional staff design effective and rigorous standards-based units of instruction consisting of 
well-structured lessons with measureable outcomes. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-B. Instruction: Ensures that practices in all settings reflect high expectations regarding content and quality of effort and work, 
engage all students, and are personalized to accommodate diverse learning styles, needs, interests, and levels of readiness. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-C. Assessment: Ensures that all principals and administrators facilitate practices that propel personnel to use a variety of formal and 
informal methods and assessments to measure student learning, growth, and understanding and make necessary adjustments to 
their practice when students are not learning. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-D. Evaluation: Ensures effective and timely supervision and evaluation of all staff in alignment with state regulations and contract 
provisions. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-E. Data-Informed Decision Making: Uses multiple sources of evidence related to student learning—including state, district, and 
school assessment results and growth data—to inform school and district goals and improve organizational performance, 
educator effectiveness, and student learning. 

X  Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

  X  

I-F. Student Learning: Demonstrates expected impact on student learning based on multiple measures of student learning, growth, 
and achievement, including student progress on common assessments and statewide student growth measures where available. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

The Student Learning Indicator does not have corresponding 
descriptions of practice. Evidence of impact on student 

learning based on multiple measures of student learning, 
growth, and achievement must be taken into account when 

determining a performance rating for this Standard. 

OVERALL Rating for Standard I: Instructional Leader ship 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by cultivating a shared vision that 
makes powerful teaching and learning the central focus of schooling. 

   X 

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

 

I-E: Dr. Milaschewski has had a very successful first year in establishing data systems and practices with both the admin team and 
within buildings. We have dramatically accelerated the progress in this area, and have built an excellent foundation to measure the 
impact of the many instructional and programmatic changes already under way and in the works. While it’s too early to evaluate how 
well the team will assess and respond to data, the investments being made are the proper first step and I was encouraged by the 
administration’s creativity in funding additional time for the data specialist position. 

 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 6 of 7 

I rate this standard as an E overall in recognition of Dr. Milaschewski’s instructional leadership, particularly in the areas of assessing 
and coaching on rigorous expectations, increasing time on learning through creative programs and initiatives, and quick action on our 
lagging literacy curriculum. 

 

 

  Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard II : Management & Operations  
 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

II-A. Environment: Develops and executes effective plans, procedures, routines, and operational systems to address a full range of 
safety, health, emotional, and social needs. 

X   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

  X  

II-B. Human Resources Management and Development: Implements a cohesive approach to recruiting, hiring, induction, 
development, and career growth that promotes high-quality and effective practice. 

X   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

  X  

II-C. Scheduling and Management Information Systems : Uses systems to ensure optimal use of data and time for teaching, 
learning, and collaboration, minimizing disruptions and distractions for school-level staff.  
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

II-D. Law, Ethics, and Policies: Understands and complies with state and federal laws and mandates, school committee policies, 
collective bargaining agreements, and ethical guidelines. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

II-E. Fiscal Systems: Develops a budget that supports the district’s vision, mission, and goals; allocates and manages expenditures 
consistent with district- and school-level goals and available resources.  
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

OVERALL Rating for Standard II: Management & Operat ions 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by ensuring a safe, efficient, and 
effective learning environment, using resources to implement appropriate curriculum, staffing, and scheduling. 

  X  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 7 of 7 

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

 

II-A: Dr. M’s ability to lead collaborative process  to develop a safe, high-performing environment has  been exceptional. Where I feel there’s some 
opportunity for improvement is in the consistent ex ecution of those identified plans and procedures ac ross the district. Particularly with respect to 
covid response, we’ve seen inconsistent application  of expectations around informing parents of positi ve cases, implementing targeted masking 
policies, return-to-school procedures, etc. Importa ntly, the SC opted not to implement any further exp ectations around masking based on the 
administration’s assurances that masking would be u sed on a targeted basis. This did not come to fruit ion, and any active decision to go away from 
this commitment was not communicated to the committ ee, or more importantly, parents who rely on proper  information from the district to make the 
best decisions for their families. 

 

II-B: One of the most important and lasting advance s of this year will be the professionalization of o ur HR practices and approaches. The quality of 
recruitment materials, the consideration given to r ole descriptions and the creative approaches to ide ntifying potential candidates conducted in 
concert with Michelle Roach have been huge steps fo rward and are critical in a difficult hiring enviro nment. In addition, while we unfortunately had to 
conduct two principal searches, Dr. Milaschewski an d Ms. Roach have really established a very successf ul process that manages to be collaborative, 
comprehensive, and fast, all at the same time. Havi ng seen one of these searches personally – I have a  great deal of confidence in the team’s ability to 
fill any other openings that should arrive with qua lity candidates. Additionally, the quality of our H R processes can be a differentiator when competing 
for educators who are considering other opportuniti es.  

 

The establishment of the principal PD structures wi ll also be a significant boon for the district in c oming years. As one of our departing principals 
likes to remind us, we have often failed to give th em the support they need to be instructional leader s, and this PD approach (in concert with coming 
discussions about resources) should pay great divid ends as we gain more experience and start to delive r really differentiated PD. 

 

 

 

 
 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard II I: Family and Community 
Engagement  

 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

III-A. Engagement: Actively ensures that all families are welcome members of the classroom and school community and can contribute 
to the effectiveness of the classroom, school, district, and community. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

III-B. Sharing Responsibility: Continuously collaborates with families and community stakeholders to support student learning and 
development at home, school, and in the community.  

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 8 of 7 

III-C. Communication: Engages in regular, two-way, culturally proficient communication with families and community stakeholders 
about student learning and performance. 

X   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

   X 

III-D. Family Concerns: Addresses family and community concerns in an equitable, effective, and efficient manner. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

OVERALL Rating for Standard III: Family & Community  Engagement 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff through effective partnerships with 
families, community organizations, and other stakeholders that support the mission of the district and its schools. 

   X 

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

 

III-C: This area has been a home run for Dr. Milaschewski in year one. Multimodal district newsletters, multi-lingual content and 
frequent availability for stakeholders to meet personally all reflect a real commitment to strong communication. The number of 
stakeholders who have personally met with Dr. Milaschewski (and other members of the team) is a real testament to his willingness to 
engage, to learn from others, and to build a collaborative district. He also communicates well with School Committee members, and 
has established a variety of mechanisms to engage us on all matter of topics. In addition to committee meetings, our 1:1s, school visits 
and small group sessions have been very effective ways to share important updates as well as collect committee feedback. 

 

While we’re not rating the other focus indicators – it should not go unsaid how Dr. Milaschewski’s strength in communication also 
enables and accelerates success for the other indicators within this standard. 

 

 

 

 

 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for S tandard IV: Professional Culture  
 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

IV-A. Commitment to High Standards: Fosters a shared commitment to high standards of service, teaching, and learning with high 
expectations for achievement for all. 

X  Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

   X 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 9 of 7 

IV-B. Cultural Proficiency: Ensures that policies and practices enable staff members and students to interact effectively in a culturally 
diverse environment in which students’ backgrounds, identities, strengths, and challenges are respected. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

IV-C. Communication: Demonstrates strong interpersonal, written, and verbal communication skills. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

IV-D. Continuous Learning: Develops and nurtures a culture in which staff members are reflective about their practice and use student 
data, current research, best practices, and theory to continuously adapt practice and achieve improved results. Models these 
behaviors in his or her own practice. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

IV-E. Shared Vision: Successfully and continuously engages all stakeholders in the creation of a shared educational vision in which 
every student is prepared to succeed in postsecondary education and become a responsible citizen and global contributor. 

X  Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

  X  

IV-F. Managing Conflict: Employs strategies for responding to disagreement and dissent, constructively resolving conflict and building 
consensus throughout a district or school community. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

OVERALL Rating for Standard IV: Professional Cultur e 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by nurturing and sustaining a 
districtwide culture of reflective practice, high expectations, and continuous learning for staff. 

   X 

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

 

IV-A: Another standout indicator for Dr. Milaschewski – he has demonstrated and modeled an understanding of the need for our district 
to raise its expectations for all stakeholders in order to achieve our shared vision and the degree of success Reading expects. Group 
school visits and general visibility in classrooms goes a long way towards helping our teachers and students see that the work they are 
doing every day is important, and valued, and that there’s a team of people helping them try to raise the bar. The focus on increasing 
time on learning is critical to our success as a district 

 

IV-E: I think we made a lot of great progress in this area – the establishment of the district’s equity statement, an entry plan which 
captured very well the district’s strengths and opportunities, collaborative goal-setting sessions (including the leadership retreat) and 
other elements have demonstrated Dr. Milaschewski’s ability to facilitate such activities with a sense of shared ownership. I rate this a 
P vs. an E in anticipation of the established shared vision really beginning to be applied in the coming year. As we navigate a year 
where we will likely have less budget flexibility to accommodate new ideas and initiatives, how we use our shared vision to navigate 
the difficult conversations ahead will be critical. 

 

 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 10 of 7 

 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 1 of 7 

End-of -Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent  
 

 

Superintendent: Dr. Thomas Milaschewski             

Evaluator:  Erin Gaffen       May 25, 2022 

 Name Signature  Date 

Step 1: Assess Progress Toward Goals ( Reference performance goals; check one for each set of goal[s].) 

Professional Practice Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress  Met  Exceeded 

Student Learning Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress  Met  Exceeded 

District Improvement Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress  Met  Exceeded 

 

Step 2: Assess Performance on Standards ( Reference Performance Ratings per Standard; check one box for each Standard.) 
 

Unsatisfactory = Performance on a standard or overall has not significantly improved following a rating of Needs Improvement, or performance is consistently 
below the requirements of a standard or overall and is considered inadequate, or both. 

Needs Improvement/Developing = Performance on a standard or overall is below the requirements of a standard or overall but is not considered to be 
Unsatisfactory at the time. Improvement is necessary and expected.  

Proficient = Proficient practice is understood to be fully satisfactory. This is the rigorous expected level of performance. 

Exemplary = A rating of Exemplary indicates that practice significantly exceeds Proficient and could serve as a model of practice regionally or statewide. 

U
n

sa
ti

sf
ac

to
ry

 

N
ee

d
s 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 

P
ro

fi
ci

en
t 

E
xe

m
p

la
ry

 

Standard I: Instructional Leadership     

Standard II: Management and Operations      

Standard III: Family and Community Engagement      

Standard IV: Professional Culture     



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 2 of 7 

End-of -Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent  
 

Step 3: Rate Overall Summative Performance ( Based on Step 1 and Step 2 ratings; check one.) 

 Unsatisfactory  Needs Improvement              Proficient  Exemplary 

 

Step 4: Add Evaluator Comments 

Comments and analysis are recommended for any rating but are required for an overall summative rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory. 

Comments: 

      
Dr. Milaschewski has had as smooth a transition as one can imagine into his role as Superintendent of Reading Public Schools (RPS). While the past school 
year has not been without its hurdles, especially the ongoing pandemic and related issues, he has managed everything with a calm, level assurance. He is an 
exemplary leader, collaborator, and communicator. He helped form a solid team at central office, gave voice to district leaders, and continually displays support 
for educators. He is eager for and open to feedback and shows a willingness to adapt and change based on that feedback. He takes the time to highlight the 
positives and communicates effectively, even about more challenging subjects. Relationship-building is a priority for him. The Superintendent is unwavering in 
his enthusiasm for the work, but also manages an impressive work/life balance. Anecdotally, RPS families and caregivers share that they feel more connected, 
and teachers share that they feel more hopeful about the direction of the district. His positive impact on school culture cannot be underscored. I am excited by 
how much Dr. Milaschewski has accomplished in his first year, and even though there is a lot of work ahead, I feel confident that our district is moving in a 
positive direction under his leadership.  

  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 3 of 7 

Superintendent’s Performance Goals  
 

 
Superintendents must identify at least one student learning goal, one professional practice goal, and two to four district 
improvement goals. Goals should be SMART and aligned to at least one focus Indicator from the Standards for Effective 
Administrative Leadership. 

D
id

 N
o

t 
M

ee
t 

S
o

m
e 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 

M
et

 

E
xc

ee
d

ed
 

Goals Focus Indicator(s) Description 

Student Learning Goal 
II-B Coaching, Developing, and Supporting Principals . Design and 

implement a district strategy for coaching, supporting, and developing 
principal talent. 

     

Professional Practice 
Goal 

III-C New Superintendent Induction Program . Develop skills in strategy 
development, data analysis, and instructional leadership by actively 
engaging in the first year of the New Superintendent Induction Program. 

     

District Improvement 
Goal 1 

I-E, IV-E Effective Entry and Direction Setting . By late spring, the district will have 
broad recognition by key stakeholder groups about the district’s most critical 
needs and will have a widely understood process underway to identify the 
strategies and goals that will address those needs most effectively, and the 
measures that will be used to assess progress. 

     

District Improvement 
Goal 2 

II-A, IV-A Maintaining Momentum During the Transition . Keep the district moving 
forward during this year’s transition in leadership by working with principals 
and other district leaders to ensure that meaningful progress is made on 
critical district and school goals. 

     

 

Standards and Indicators for Effective Administrative Leadership 

Superintendents should identify 1-2 focus Indicators per Standard aligned to their goals. 

I. Instructional Leadership II. Management & Operations III. Family & Community Engagement IV. Professional Culture 

I-A. Curriculum  

I-B. Instruction 

I-C. Assessment 

I-D. Evaluation 

I-E. Data-Informed Decision Making 

I-F. Student Learning 

II-A. Environment 

II-B. HR Management and Development 

II-C. Scheduling & Management Information 

Systems 

II-D. Law, Ethics and Policies 

II-E. Fiscal Systems 

III-A. Engagement 

III-B. Sharing Responsibility 

III-C. Communication 

III-D. Family Concerns 

 

IV-A. Commitment to High Standards 

IV-B. Cultural Proficiency 

IV-C. Communication 

IV-D. Continuous Learning 

IV-E. Shared Vision 

IV-F. Managing Conflict 

  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 4 of 7 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard I:  Instructional Leadership  
 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

I-A. Curriculum: Ensures that all instructional staff design effective and rigorous standards-based units of instruction consisting of 
well-structured lessons with measurable outcomes. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-B. Instruction: Ensures that practices in all settings reflect high expectations regarding content and quality of effort and work, 
engage all students, and are personalized to accommodate diverse learning styles, needs, interests, and levels of readiness. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-C. Assessment: Ensures that all principals and administrators facilitate practices that propel personnel to use a variety of formal and 
informal methods and assessments to measure student learning, growth, and understanding and make necessary adjustments to 
their practice when students are not learning. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-D. Evaluation: Ensures effective and timely supervision and evaluation of all staff in alignment with state regulations and contract 
provisions. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-E. Data-Informed Decision Making: Uses multiple sources of evidence related to student learning—including state, district, and 
school assessment results and growth data—to inform school and district goals and improve organizational performance, 
educator effectiveness, and student learning. 

   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-F. Student Learning: Demonstrates expected impact on student learning based on multiple measures of student learning, growth, 
and achievement, including student progress on common assessments and statewide student growth measures where available. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

The Student Learning Indicator does not have corresponding 
descriptions of practice. Evidence of impact on student 

learning based on multiple measures of student learning, 
growth, and achievement must be taken into account when 

determining a performance rating for this Standard. 

OVERALL Rating for Standard I: Instructional Leader ship 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by cultivating a shared vision that 
makes powerful teaching and learning the central focus of schooling. 

    

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

I-E  

Dr. Milaschewski had a strong start to his first year as Superintendent of RPS with a clearly laid out entry plan, and he followed his entry plan with vigor. He 
invested considerable time in meeting with administrators, School Committee members, teachers, staff, and caregivers to listen and learn. He also spent 
substantial time in classrooms to observe and connect. Dr. Milaschewski and his team dug into MCAS results and other available data in order to make informed 
decisions about moving the district forward. His report of entry findings was exceedingly thorough and reflected a clear understanding of the strengths and areas 
for improvement within our schools. It is clear that he recognizes the importance and value of data-informed decision making. This was exemplified by the swift 
action by Dr. Milaschewski and his team to identify and adopt a new literacy curriculum for our elementary schools, one that would better address the needs of all 
learners, an area that teachers and data indicated was very much in need of attention. Additionally, I was encouraged by the administration’s creative approach to 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 5 of 7 

increasing time on learning through vacation academies, and their introduction of more innovative pathways at RMHS. These are just a few of the positive 
changes that were implemented as a result of the available data.  

 

It is also evident that RPS needs even more and even better methods of collecting data. Next year will see additional changes, including increasing the data 
specialist hours, the adoption of i-Ready for math and ELA assessments, the implementation of the new ARC Core literacy curriculum in grades 3-5, the 
continued implementation of the new Illustrative Math in grades K-2, and the creation of the Academic Support Center at RMHS. I am eager to see the data from 
these, as well as further exploration of our middle and high school schedules, how to continue to increase time on learning, and how to increase rigor within our 
schools while still balancing the needs of all learners.  

 

  Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard II : Management & Operations  
 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

II-A. Environment: Develops and executes effective plans, procedures, routines, and operational systems to address a full range of 
safety, health, emotional, and social needs. 

   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

II-B. Human Resources Management and Development: Implements a cohesive approach to recruiting, hiring, induction, 
development, and career growth that promotes high-quality and effective practice. 

   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

II-C. Scheduling and Management Information Systems : Uses systems to ensure optimal use of data and time for teaching, 
learning, and collaboration, minimizing disruptions and distractions for school-level staff.  
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

II-D. Law, Ethics, and Policies: Understands and complies with state and federal laws and mandates, school committee policies, 
collective bargaining agreements, and ethical guidelines. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

II-E. Fiscal Systems: Develops a budget that supports the district’s vision, mission, and goals; allocates and manages expenditures 
consistent with district- and school-level goals and available resources.  
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

OVERALL Rating for Standard II: Management & Operat ions 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by ensuring a safe, efficient, and 
effective learning environment, using resources to implement appropriate curriculum, staffing, and scheduling. 

    



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 6 of 7 

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

II-A 

It is worthy of recognition that in this year of tremendous leadership change for RPS, and continued upheaval due to the ongoing pandemic, Dr. Milaschewski 
established a strong, cohesive central office team. Collaboration is a definite strength of his. An obvious example is the ever-evolving covid-repose systems and 
protocols that were needed to navigate this school year. Dr. Milaschewski relied on his team and collaboration with his district and community leaders to make the 
best decisions that he could for the district. I believe the administration’s response to covid kept more students in school while still addressing the health needs of 
students and staff. He also was able to show his ability to adapt and remain flexible based on changes in data.  

 

The safety, health, emotional, and social needs of students and staff are as intense as ever. The message I repeatedly heard this past fall from within RPS and 
across the nation was that schools were prepared for physical health needs in regard to covid, and for some academic gaps, but they were not as prepared for 
the enormity of the mental health needs of many students. Students cannot learn if they do not feel safe, supported, and engaged. There is ongoing work to be 
done within RPS to address mental health needs, as well as diversity, equity, and inclusion needs. We know that 100% of our students do not report feeling safe 
and supported. We know that 100% of our students do not report feeling engaged or connected. I am thrilled that Dr. Milaschewski advocated to add School 
Adjustment Counselors at every level next year. It is a step in the right direction. We must continue to ensure that our schools have the ability to support all mental 
health needs, including for Tier I students. I hope to see each of our school climates be ones that all students describe as safe, supportive, and inclusive. 

 

II-B  

There have been many positive changes under Dr. Milaschewski and Ms. Roach to recruiting and hiring practices including how job openings are worded, where 
jobs are posted, pay-scale, onboarding after new employees are hired, and support for new hires. They creatively expanded our pool of substitutes during a time 
when most districts struggled significantly to fill this position. They also conducted two successful principal searches and hires. I am excited by the direction 
human resources appears to be going for RPS. I remain eager to see RPS continue to strive to recruit, hire, and retain a more diverse staff, that better reflects the 
student body.  

 

Dr. Milaschewski’s goal on coaching, developing, and supporting principals has the potential to benefit RPS in countless ways, particularly leadership retention 
and student outcomes. He is highly invested in empowering district and building leaders. Good leadership matters, and all good leaders need meaningful support 
in order to be effective. The Superintendent is well-equipped to support our school leaders, and this work will be on-going.  

 
 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard II I: Family and Community 
Engagement  

 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

III-A. Engagement: Actively ensures that all families are welcome members of the classroom and school community and can contribute 
to the effectiveness of the classroom, school, district, and community. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 7 of 7 

III-B. Sharing Responsibility: Continuously collaborates with families and community stakeholders to support student learning and 
development at home, school, and in the community.  

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

III-C. Communication: Engages in regular, two-way, culturally proficient communication with families and community stakeholders 
about student learning and performance. 
   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

III-D. Family Concerns: Addresses family and community concerns in an equitable, effective, and efficient manner. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

OVERALL Rating for Standard III: Family & Community  Engagement 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff through effective partnerships with 
families, community organizations, and other stakeholders that support the mission of the district and its schools. 

    

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

III – C  

Communication is an area where Dr. Milaschewski truly shines. From the onset, and in fact before he officially started, he strove to meet with as many 
stakeholders as possible, and that has continued throughout the year. He wisely spent time listening and quickly learned a great deal about the district and the 
people of the district. His tone, manner, and responsiveness help people to feel validated and heard. Dr. Milaschewski has been very quick to respond to 
caregiver questions and concerns and consistently offers to meet/speak to discuss further. His weekly multi-modal communication from the district is particularly 
impressive. He includes video and written form, the option to translate into multiple languages, and he makes a point of sharing joys and accomplishments, not 
simply the need-to-know information. Recently, he made a point of reaching out to Reading residents not currently affiliated with RPS to allow them to sign up to 
receive communication from the schools. Also exceptional is the extent to which Dr. Milaschewski has been present in the schools and community. Over the 
course of his first year he has visited a majority of classrooms, and after each visit he sent a personal note with detailed feedback for the educator. He has also 
attended many events, games, and performances. This level of visibility shows his approachability and commitment to building relationships with the RPS 
community. Dr. Milaschewski further showcased his communication skills throughout the FY23 budget presentations. His approach was highly inclusive and 
comprehensive. Alongside Ms. Bottan, they made the budget easier to follow and showed clear connections to the district vision and goals. The Superintendent’s 
excellent communication skills have gone a long way toward improving family-school-community relations.  

 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard IV: Professional Cu lture  
 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

IV-A. Commitment to High Standards: Fosters a shared commitment to high standards of service, teaching, and learning with high 
expectations for achievement for all. 

    



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 8 of 7 

   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

IV-B. Cultural Proficiency: Ensures that policies and practices enable staff members and students to interact effectively in a culturally 
diverse environment in which students’ backgrounds, identities, strengths, and challenges are respected. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

IV-C. Communication: Demonstrates strong interpersonal, written, and verbal communication skills. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

IV-D. Continuous Learning: Develops and nurtures a culture in which staff members are reflective about their practice and use student 
data, current research, best practices, and theory to continuously adapt practice and achieve improved results. Models these 
behaviors in his or her own practice. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

IV-E. Shared Vision: Successfully and continuously engages all stakeholders in the creation of a shared educational vision in which 
every student is prepared to succeed in postsecondary education and become a responsible citizen and global contributor. 
   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

IV-F. Managing Conflict: Employs strategies for responding to disagreement and dissent, constructively resolving conflict and building 
consensus throughout a district or school community. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

OVERALL Rating for Standard IV: Professional Cultur e 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by nurturing and sustaining a 
districtwide culture of reflective practice, high expectations, and continuous learning for staff. 

    

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

IV-A  

Dr. Milaschewski recognizes that the district can strive for equity and excellence, and that we do not need to sacrifice one for the other. He sets a high bar for 
student engagement and high expectations for all learners. His ongoing presence in schools and classrooms demonstrates his support for RPS educators and 
their important work. There is still much progress to be made in this area, but he has shown that he is committed to increasing academic outcomes in RPS. Some 
examples of steps that Dr. Milaschewski has taken thus far are increasing time on learning through vacation academies, the upcoming summer adventure 
offerings, offering new pathways at the high school through the dual enrollment program, and pursuing a new literacy curriculum for our elementary learners. 
Examples that should help to raise the achievement level next year include increasing full-day kindergarten enrollment by lowering tuition (and thus hopefully 
starting the path to universal free full-day kindergarten), implementation of the new literacy curriculum for grades 3-5, the creation of the Academic Support Center 
at RMHS for Tier I students, and the addition of school adjustment counselors at all levels. The latter is made possible partially by the expansion of the METCO 
program next year, which will benefit all RPS students. Ongoing work will need to include (at a minimum): revamping the high school schedule, potentially 
revamping the middle school schedule, a closer examination of math pathways and offerings starting at grade 6, exploring how to better align academics between 
middle and high school, and continuing to expand offerings at RMHS for all levels of learners.  

 

IV-E  

Every step of Dr. Milaschewski’s entry plan involved collaboration. His goal setting was inclusive, the school improvement plans were aligned to the district 
improvement plan, and his budget process was a joint effort. He presented his findings in writing, to the School Committee during public meeting, and shared via 
email with the entire RPS community. He has learned a remarkable amount in a brief period of time, and the thoroughness of his entry plan findings reflect this. I 
was grateful to see that he identified the areas for improvement while also celebrating the strengths of RPS. He holds regular meetings with central office, district 
leadership, and School Committee members. Further, he holds strategy sessions for bigger picture topics, to ensure key stakeholders can provide input and 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 9 of 7 

remain involved. Dr. Milachewski also ran a highly successful district leadership retreat last August, which included central office, principals, RTA leaders, 
education leaders, and School Committee members. As a part of the work conducted there, this group of RPS leaders created a group equity statement that 
serves as a shared vision for the district. Going forward, I hope to see the portrait of a graduate work incorporated more into district planning and visions. I 
anticipate more challenging conversations and decisions ahead, particularly around the confines of our budget, but I am confident that Dr. Milachewski will 
continue to address them in a collaborative and shared manner with the best interests of students in mind.  

 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 1 of 7 

 

End-of -Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent  
 

 

Superintendent: Dr. Thomas Milaschewski             

Evaluator:  Sarah McLaughlin            

 

  5/22/2022    

 Name Signature  Date 

Step 1: Assess Progress Toward Goals ( Reference performance goals; check one for each set of goal[s].) 

Professional Practice Goal(s) ☐ Did Not Meet ☐ Some Progress ☐ Significant Progress ☐ Met ☒ Exceeded 

Student Learning Goal(s) ☐ Did Not Meet ☐ Some Progress ☐ Significant Progress ☐ Met ☒ Exceeded 

District Improvement Goal(s) ☐ Did Not Meet ☐ Some Progress ☐ Significant Progress ☒ Met ☐ Exceeded 

 

Step 2: Assess Performance on Standards ( Reference Performance Ratings per Standard; check one box for each Standard.) 

  

Unsatisfactory = Performance on a standard or overall has not significantly improved following a rating of Needs Improvement, or performance is consistently 
below the requirements of a standard or overall and is considered inadequate, or both. 

Needs Improvement/Developing = Performance on a standard or overall is below the requirements of a standard or overall but is not considered to be 
Unsatisfactory at the time. Improvement is necessary and expected.  

Proficient = Proficient practice is understood to be fully satisfactory. This is the rigorous expected level of performance. 

Exemplary = A rating of Exemplary indicates that practice significantly exceeds Proficient and could serve as a model of practice regionally or statewide. 

Unsa
tisfac
tory 

Need
s 
Impr
ovem
ent 

Pro
fici
ent 

Exe
mpla
ry 

 
Standard I: Instructional Leadership ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

 Standard II: Management and Operations  ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

 Standard III: Family and Community Engagement  ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

 Standard IV: Professional Culture ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 2 of 7 

End-of -Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent  
 

Step 3: Rate Overall Summative Performance ( Based on Step 1 and Step 2 ratings; check one.) 

☐ Unsatisfactory ☐ Needs Improvement             ☒ Proficient ☐ Exemplary 

 

Step 4: Add Evaluator Comments 

Comments and analysis are recommended for any rating but are required for an overall summative rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory. 

Comments: 
 
Overall, Dr. Milaschewski’s first year in the Reading Public Schools was enormously successful, particularly given it was also his first year as a superintendent. 

Dr. M’s commitment to the core values of collaboration, equity, and excellence - as expressed in his Superintendent Entry Plan - can be clearly seen 

throughout his leadership of RPS. These qualities are particularly evident in: 

 

● Willingness to not only acknowledge areas of weakness, but to lean in and identify a path forward 

● Readily celebrates successes and strengths 

● Recognizes the importance of shared understanding, collaboration, and communication  

● Provides opportunities for everybody in RPS to feel included and that they have a voice 

 

Dr. M brings a high-level of knowledge and expertise to his role, when paired with his core strengths of data-informed decision making and communication it 

results in amazing things. I’m excited to see our district transform under Dr. M’s leadership over the coming years. 

Specific feedback and examples for each of the key performance indicators the School Committee is using to evaluate Dr. M’s performance are outlined 

below. 

 

 

 

 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 3 of 7 

  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 4 of 7 

Superintendent’s Performance Goals  
 

 
Superintendents must identify at least one student learning goal, one professional practice goal, and two to four district 
improvement goals. Goals should be SMART and aligned to at least one focus Indicator from the Standards for Effective 
Administrative Leadership. 

Did 
Not 
Meet 

Some 
Progr
ess 

Signif
icant 
Progr
ess 

Met 
Exceed
ed 

Goals Focus Indicator(s) Description 

Student Learning Goal 
II-B Coaching, Developing, and Supporting Principals . Design and 

implement a district strategy for coaching, supporting, and developing 
principal talent. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

Professional Practice 
Goal 

III-C New Superintendent Induction Program . Develop skills in strategy 
development, data analysis, and instructional leadership by actively 
engaging in the first year of the New Superintendent Induction Program. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

District Improvement 
Goal 1 

I-E, IV-E Effective Entry and Direction Setting . By late spring, the district will have 
broad recognition by key stakeholder groups about the district’s most 
critical needs and will have a widely-understood process underway to 
identify the strategies and goals that will address those needs most 
effectively, and the measures that will be used to assess progress. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

District Improvement 
Goal 2 

II-A, IV-A Maintaining Momentum During the Transition . Keep the district moving 
forward during this year’s transition in leadership by working with principals 
and other district leaders to ensure that meaningful progress is made on 
critical district and school goals. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

 

Standards and Indicators for Effective Administrative Leadership 

Superintendents should identify 1-2 focus Indicators per Standard aligned to their goals. 

I. Instructional Leadership II. Management & Operations III. Family & Community Engagement IV. Professional Culture 

I-A. Curriculum  

I-B. Instruction 

I-C. Assessment 

I-D. Evaluation 

I-E. Data-Informed Decision Making 

I-F. Student Learning 

II-A. Environment 

II-B. HR Management and Development 

II-C. Scheduling & Management Information 

Systems 

II-D. Law, Ethics and Policies 

II-E. Fiscal Systems 

III-A. Engagement 

III-B. Sharing Responsibility 

III-C. Communication 

III-D. Family Concerns 

 

IV-A. Commitment to High Standards 

IV-B. Cultural Proficiency 

IV-C. Communication 

IV-D. Continuous Learning 

IV-E. Shared Vision 

IV-F. Managing Conflict 

  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 5 of 7 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard I:  Instructional Leadership  
 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

I-A. Curriculum: Ensures that all instructional staff design effective and rigorous standards-based units of instruction consisting of 
well-structured lessons with measureable outcomes. 

□ Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

I-B. Instruction: Ensures that practices in all settings reflect high expectations regarding content and quality of effort and work, 
engage all students, and are personalized to accommodate diverse learning styles, needs, interests, and levels of readiness. 
□ Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

I-C. Assessment: Ensures that all principals and administrators facilitate practices that propel personnel to use a variety of formal and 
informal methods and assessments to measure student learning, growth, and understanding and make necessary adjustments to 
their practice when students are not learning. 
□ Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

I-D. Evaluation: Ensures effective and timely supervision and evaluation of all staff in alignment with state regulations and contract 
provisions. 
□ Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

I-E. Data-Informed Decision Making: Uses multiple sources of evidence related to student learning—including state, district, and 
school assessment results and growth data—to inform school and district goals and improve organizational performance, 
educator effectiveness, and student learning. 

☒   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

I-F. Student Learning: Demonstrates expected impact on student learning based on multiple measures of student learning, growth, 
and achievement, including student progress on common assessments and statewide student growth measures where available. 
□ Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

The Student Learning Indicator does not have corresponding 
descriptions of practice. Evidence of impact on student 

learning based on multiple measures of student learning, 
growth, and achievement must be taken into account when 

determining a performance rating for this Standard. 

OVERALL Rating for Standard I: Instructional Leader ship 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by cultivating a shared vision that 
makes powerful teaching and learning the central focus of schooling. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

 
I-E - Uses multiple sources of evidence related to student learning—including state, district, and sch ool assessment results and growth data—to inform sc hool and 

district goals and improve organizational performan ce, educator effectiveness, and student learning. 

 

Data-informed decision making is an area of significant strength for Dr. Milaschewski and is displayed throughout all aspects of his District leadership. Dr. M’s 

entry plan, shared prior to the start of his role as Superintendent, clearly outlined his approach to gather both qualitative and quantitative data to gather a 

better understanding of Reading Public Schools. A significant amount of data was gathered through the entry plan process, including key stakeholder interviews 

(e.g. School Committee, Central Office team, staff, parents, and students); review of historical MCAS data trends; and school visits and observations. Dr. M 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 6 of 7 

worked with building principals and district administrators to leverage the data collected via the entry process, as well as the DESE District Review, and school-

visit data to inform school and district improvement plans. 

 

One of the biggest things that jumps out at me and warrants the exemplary rating is Dr. M’s concerted effort to close data gaps. We have significant data 

deserts within RPS. Where we are lacking data, Dr. M and his team created a path forward, a clear plan for filling in these holes, and established a process for 

systematically and frequently reviewing district-level data. Examples include, conducting special education program reviews, adding in a 1.0 FTE data-specialist 

to the FY23 budget, and launching i-Ready in Math and ELA at the middle school level.   

Further examples of Dr. M’s data-informed approach to decision making include: 

● Thoughtful recommendation to School Committee to elect moving forward with School Choice based on a thorough analysis of available student seats, 

impact on school revenue and budgets. 

● Ability to quickly and efficiently spin up an administrative advisory group to inform the K-5 literacy core curriculum adoption. A clear approach was 

outlined, including sources of data and information (listening and info sessions with teachers, review of existing curricula review data, hands on review 

of highest rated tools, classroom observations), a timeline, and was inclusive of key stakeholders including principals, teachers, and administrators.  

 

  Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard II : Management & Operations  
 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

II-A. Environment: Develops and executes effective plans, procedures, routines, and operational systems to address a full range of 
safety, health, emotional, and social needs. 

☒   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

II-B. Human Resources Management and Development: Implements a cohesive approach to recruiting, hiring, induction, 
development, and career growth that promotes high-quality and effective practice. 

☒   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

II-C. Scheduling and Management Information Systems : Uses systems to ensure optimal use of data and time for teaching, 
learning, and collaboration, minimizing disruptions and distractions for school-level staff.  

□ Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

II-D. Law, Ethics, and Policies: Understands and complies with state and federal laws and mandates, school committee policies, 
collective bargaining agreements, and ethical guidelines. 
□ Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

II-E. Fiscal Systems: Develops a budget that supports the district’s vision, mission, and goals; allocates and manages expenditures 
consistent with district- and school-level goals and available resources.  

□ Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 7 of 7 

OVERALL Rating for Standard II: Management & Operat ions 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by ensuring a safe, efficient, and 
effective learning environment, using resources to implement appropriate curriculum, staffing, and scheduling. 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

 
II-A Environment: Develops and executes effective p lans, procedures, routines, and operational systems  to address a full range of safety, health, emotion al, and social 
needs. 

Given that we are still in the midst of a global pandemic, the majority of focus on safety, health, emotional and social needs has been centered around the 

District’s response to COVID-19. Overall, Dr. M and the district leadership team have displayed an ability to be nimble and flexible in the approach to the 

shifting needs of RPS during the pandemic. Dr. M has been creative and responsive with resourcing, particularly regarding the needs to support undue burden 

on school nurses and implemented the use of a float nurse to support the district nursing team. Test and stay was stood up quickly early in the school year 

allowing a safe return back to school buildings in the Fall. Following the removal of the universal mak mandate and in alignment with the stated goal of 

providing safe, uninterrupted, in-person learning, I would have liked to have seen more follow-through on implementing mitigation strategies as case numbers 

have increased again this spring, explicit and more frequent communication to families, as well as indoor masking requirements for classroom bubbles.  

Other examples of effective health and safety plans and procedures include: 

● Review of the ALICE drill protocols in collaboration with RPD and amended at the elementary level in alignment with age appropriate best practices; 

● Review and improvement of the RMHS safety, attendance, and physical health processes;  

● Fostering an environment that is safe and inclusive for all - executive functioning supports, expanded team chair role and instituted program reviews, 

solicited feedback and input from diverse group of key stakeholders to inform the priorities in the FY23 budget process such as the increased school 

counselor roles, academic support center at RMHS is prioritized. 

 

II-B. Human Resources Management and Development: Implements a cohesive approach to recruiting, hiring, induction, development, and career growth 

that promotes high-quality and effective practice. 

Dr. M worked with the HR Director to review recruitment and hiring processes and forms to identify and remove barriers, streamline the process and improve 

both the applicant pool and overall experience. A couple new work streams particularly stood out: collection and regular review of data to track trends and 

insights in hiring; as well as creativity in reaching the widest, most experienced candidate pool by posting across various job boards and improving job 

descriptions. Dr. M instituted a collaborative and communicative search process for significant District roles including the Wood End and Parker principal 

searches.  

 

Dr. M designed a thoughtful, evidence-based approach to a district strategy for coaching, supporting, and developing principal talent. Implementation of the 

structures put into place is underway with the intent to carry practices forward next year in FY23. The emphasis placed on embedded professional development  

to support continued learning is a significant and positive shift for RPS.  Examples of the high priority placed on professional development include: PD 

embedded into the structure put in place to support principals; highlighted as a critical element in rolling out the new literacy curriculum for K-5 in supporting 

our teachers growth; DLT classroom visits have also demonstrated commitment to embedded PD to support instructional growth. 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 8 of 7 

 

 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard II I: Family and Community 
Engagement  

 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

III-A. Engagement: Actively ensures that all families are welcome members of the classroom and school community and can contribute 
to the effectiveness of the classroom, school, district, and community. 

□ Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

III-B. Sharing Responsibility: Continuously collaborates with families and community stakeholders to support student learning and 
development at home, school, and in the community.  

□ Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

III-C. Communication: Engages in regular, two-way, culturally proficient communication with families and community stakeholders 
about student learning and performance. 

☒   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

III-D. Family Concerns: Addresses family and community concerns in an equitable, effective, and efficient manner. 

□ Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

OVERALL Rating for Standard III: Family & Community  Engagement 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff through effective partnerships with 
families, community organizations, and other stakeholders that support the mission of the district and its schools. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 9 of 7 

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

 
III-C - Communication: Engages in regular, two-way,  culturally proficient communication with families and community stakeholders about student learning a nd 
performance. 

 

Dr. M is a strong communicator and excels at making people feel valued and heard. When communicating with various stakeholders he is actively engaged, 

empathetic, open-minded, and respectful. Dr. M sends weekly district emails that include multiple modes of communication. At the beginning of the calendar 

year, he engaged RMHS students to record a weekly district video update. The videos have been fun, engaging, and creative and have included student report 

outs, regular celebration of RPS successes, and a cameo appearance in full costume and make up to advertise the RMHS performance of Zombie Prom.  

 

Upon his start in the district, Dr. M scheduled opportunities for families and students to meet and discuss concerns and interests. He has continued to be 

accessible to staff, students, and families and is responsive to phone calls and emails. Furthermore, he is consistently and visibly present in the RPS and wider 

community, attending performances and school events with his family, for example, ArtsFest, musicals and plays, CATO historical tour, Fall Street Faire, sporting 

events, and band competitions. 

 

Dr. M has had the opportunity to make many presentations to town boards and committees on various high priority RPS matters, including state of the schools 

and FY23 budget requests at Fin Comm and Town Meeting; as well as discussion and advocacy for RPS funding at Reading ARPA Advisory Committee and Select 

Board. In each of these presentations he has consistently displayed clear, concise communication and data-informed decision making as well as being open and 

responsive to questions and feedback from stakeholders. 

 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard IV : Professional Culture  
 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

IV-A. Commitment to High Standards: Fosters a shared commitment to high standards of service, teaching, and learning with high 
expectations for achievement for all. 

☒   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

IV-B. Cultural Proficiency: Ensures that policies and practices enable staff members and students to interact effectively in a culturally 
diverse environment in which students’ backgrounds, identities, strengths, and challenges are respected. 

◻ Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

IV-C. Communication: Demonstrates strong interpersonal, written, and verbal communication skills. 

◻ Focus Indicator (check if yes) ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 10 of 7 

IV-D. Continuous Learning: Develops and nurtures a culture in which staff members are reflective about their practice and use student 
data, current research, best practices, and theory to continuously adapt practice and achieve improved results. Models these 
behaviors in his or her own practice. 

◻ Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

IV-E. Shared Vision: Successfully and continuously engages all stakeholders in the creation of a shared educational vision in which 
every student is prepared to succeed in postsecondary education and become a responsible citizen and global contributor. 

☒   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

IV-F. Managing Conflict: Employs strategies for responding to disagreement and dissent, constructively resolving conflict and building 
consensus throughout a district or school community. 

◻ Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

OVERALL Rating for Standard IV: Professional Cultur e 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by nurturing and sustaining a 
districtwide culture of reflective practice, high expectations, and continuous learning for staff. 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

 

IV-A. Commitment to High Standards: Fosters a shared commitment to high standards of service, teaching, and learning with high expectations for achievement for all. 

 

In his relatively brief tenure in RPS to date, Dr. M has displayed a firm commitment to high-standards for all learners. He worked with the district leadership 

team to expand time on learning including: implementing February and April vacation academies; expanded student summer support to a wider group of 

learners as well as including a full day option through a partnership with the YMCA; and expanded tutoring opportunities at each school building. Improvement 

and expansion of the METCO program has also been an area of significant focus. In addition to the hiring of our fantastic METCO Director, Kurtis Martin, the 

METCO program has seen great improvements including: adding in  late busing to ensure students have access to participate in all of the RPS community, 

sports, play dates, etc; expanded the size of the program to add 40 additional students; and implemented Boston and Reading resident community-building 

events. 

Additional examples of Dr. M’s commitment to high-standards include: 

● Expanding opportunities at the high school level began during FY22, including: piloting dual enrollment courses with Endicott; expanded computer 

science offerings; and launching the Gateway to College program with NSCC.  

● Worked with district leadership and School Committee to lay out a possible path forward for funding universal full day Kindergarten 

● Prioritizing the work to identify, purchase, and develop a plan to implement a high-quality, evidence-based ELA curriculum for grades K-5. 

● Regular cadence of school visits and observations, demonstrating to the wider school community his dedication to being highly engaged and 

collaborative district leadership team. 

Moving forward I am looking forward to seeing a more assertive and timely path forward for expanding math pathways at the middle school level as well as 

expansion of  tracks and opportunities at the high school level. 

 

IV-E. Shared Vision: Successfully and continuously engages all stakeholders in the creation of a shared educational vision in which every student is prepared to succeed in 
postsecondary education and become a responsible citizen and global contributor. 

 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 11 of 7 

Over the course of the FY22 school year, Dr. M has regularly exhibited his priority and commitment to an inclusive RPS community. At the beginning of the year, 

prior to the start of school, RPS District leadership met at an offsite meeting and as part of the agenda, worked to develop a shared equity statement that is 

representative of all in the RPS community. In addition, he continues to express sentiments of inclusion and involvement from staff and the importance of 

bringing staff along on the journey as RPS evolves - communicating not only the what, but the why and how of the importance of our work and any changes he 

is making. He consistently makes space for questions and discussion, while also moving forward with purpose.  

 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 1 of 7 

End-of -Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent  
 

 

Superintendent: Dr. Thomas Milaschewski             

Evaluator:  Carla Nazzaro       5/22/2022 

 Name Signature  Date 

Step 1: Assess Progress Toward Goals ( Reference performance goals; check one for each set of goal[s].) 

Professional Practice Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress x  Met  Exceeded 

Student Learning Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress  Met x  Exceeded 

District Improvement Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress  Met x  Exceeded 

 

Step 2: Assess Performance on Standards ( Reference Performance Ratings per Standard; check one box for each Standard.) 
 

Unsatisfactory = Performance on a standard or overall has not significantly improved following a rating of Needs Improvement, or performance is consistently 
below the requirements of a standard or overall and is considered inadequate, or both. 

Needs Improvement/Developing = Performance on a standard or overall is below the requirements of a standard or overall but is not considered to be 
Unsatisfactory at the time. Improvement is necessary and expected.  

Proficient = Proficient practice is understood to be fully satisfactory. This is the rigorous expected level of performance. 

Exemplary = A rating of Exemplary indicates that practice significantly exceeds Proficient and could serve as a model of practice regionally or statewide. 

U
n

sa
ti

sf
ac

to
ry

 

N
ee

d
s 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 

P
ro

fi
ci

en
t 

E
xe

m
p

la
ry

 

Standard I: Instructional Leadership   x   

Standard II: Management and Operations     x  

Standard III: Family and Community Engagement    x   

Standard IV: Professional Culture    x  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 2 of 7 

End-of -Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent  
 

Step 3: Rate Overall Summative Performance ( Based on Step 1 and Step 2 ratings; check one.) 

 Unsatisfactory  Needs Improvement              Proficient x  Exemplary 

 

Step 4: Add Evaluator Comments 

Comments and analysis are recommended for any rating but are required for an overall summative rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory. 

Comments: 

Dr. Milaschewski is the “right leader at the right time” for Reading. He is a thoughtful leader who collaborates with all stakeholders, 
gathers and synthesizes data and then implements processes that will improve outcomes. He has put together an executive staff who 
is fiercely loyal to him and dedicated to excellence. He builds trust with staff, students and parents and welcomes and appreciates 
differing points of view. He has made many positive changes and has created a feeling of hopeful anticipation.  

 

In his 10 ½ month tenure, he has identified and understood the issues the district has been facing (for years) around literacy and 
curriculum. He assembled expert teams who researched multiple curriculums and identified the best one to fit our needs. He secured 
funding and will shortly purchase a quality curriculum which will positively change reading outcomes for students. This is a 
tremendous accomplishment. 

 

I feel that Dr. Milaschewski has a good understanding of where we are as a district. He will enhance our positive attributes and 
improve where we are lacking. Student achievement is at the heart of every decision he makes. I am thrilled that he is guiding our 
district and am excited to watch us flourish under his leadership. We are fortunate to have him in Reading. 

 

Invest-to-save I love the innovative thinking around school choice to generate revenue and the invest to save mentality of this 
administration. I am hopeful that changes made will result in future savings. The new literacy program will decrease out-of-district 
placements and free up special education resources. The multi-tiered supports being put in place at the high school will increase 
student outcomes while decreasing the number of students utilizing special education services. Revamping of the high school 
schedule will increase efficiency of staff resources, by allowing teachers to utilize freed-up time to support students and collaborate 
with colleagues.  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 3 of 7 

Dr. Milaschewski is a gift to our town and the improvements he makes in our district will be a part of his professional story. 

Superintendent’s Performance Goals  
 

 
Superintendents must identify at least one student learning goal, one professional practice goal, and two to four district 
improvement goals. Goals should be SMART and aligned to at least one focus Indicator from the Standards for Effective 
Administrative Leadership. 

D
id

 N
o

t 
M

ee
t 

S
o

m
e 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 

M
et

 

E
xc

ee
d

ed
 

Goals Focus Indicator(s) Description 

Student Learning Goal 

Goal 4 

II-B Coaching, Developing, and Supporting Principals . Design and 
implement a district strategy for coaching, supporting, and developing 
principal talent. 

     x  

Professional Practice 
Goal 3 

III-C New Superintendent Induction Program . Develop skills in strategy 
development, data analysis, and instructional leadership by actively 
engaging in the first year of the New Superintendent Induction Program. 

   x   



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 4 of 7 

District Improvement 
Goal 1 

I-E, IV-E Effective Entry and Direction Setting . By late spring, the district will have 
broad recognition by key stakeholder groups about the district’s most critical 
needs and will have a widely understood process underway to identify the 
strategies and goals that will address those needs most effectively, and the 
measures that will be used to assess progress. 

    x  

District Improvement 
Goal 2 

II-A, IV-A Maintaining Momentum During the Transition . Keep the district moving 
forward during this year’s transition in leadership by working with principals 
and other district leaders to ensure that meaningful progress is made on 
critical district and school goals. 

    x  

 

Standards and Indicators for Effective Administrative Leadership 

Superintendents should identify 1-2 focus Indicators per Standard aligned to their goals. 

I. Instructional Leadership II. Management & Operations III. Family & Community Engagement IV. Professional Culture 

I-A. Curriculum  

I-B. Instruction 

I-C. Assessment 

I-D. Evaluation 

I-E. Data-Informed Decision Making 

I-F. Student Learning 

II-A. Environment 

II-B. HR Management and Development 

II-C. Scheduling & Management Information 

Systems 

II-D. Law, Ethics and Policies 

II-E. Fiscal Systems 

III-A. Engagement 

III-B. Sharing Responsibility 

III-C. Communication 

III-D. Family Concerns 

 

IV-A. Commitment to High Standards 

IV-B. Cultural Proficiency 

IV-C. Communication 

IV-D. Continuous Learning 

IV-E. Shared Vision 

IV-F. Managing Conflict 

  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 5 of 7 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard I:  Instructional Leadership  
 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

I-A. Curriculum: Ensures that all instructional staff design effective and rigorous standards-based units of instruction consisting of 
well-structured lessons with measurable outcomes. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-B. Instruction: Ensures that practices in all settings reflect high expectations regarding content and quality of effort and work, 
engage all students, and are personalized to accommodate diverse learning styles, needs, interests, and levels of readiness. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-C. Assessment: Ensures that all principals and administrators facilitate practices that propel personnel to use a variety of formal and 
informal methods and assessments to measure student learning, growth, and understanding and make necessary adjustments to 
their practice when students are not learning. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-D. Evaluation: Ensures effective and timely supervision and evaluation of all staff in alignment with state regulations and contract 
provisions. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-E. Data-Informed Decision Making: Uses multiple sources of evidence related to student learning—including state, district, and 
school assessment results and growth data—to inform school and district goals and improve organizational performance, 
educator effectiveness, and student learning. 

   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

  x   

I-F. Student Learning: Demonstrates expected impact on student learning based on multiple measures of student learning, growth, 
and achievement, including student progress on common assessments and statewide student growth measures where available. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

The Student Learning Indicator does not have corresponding 
descriptions of practice. Evidence of impact on student 

learning based on multiple measures of student learning, 
growth, and achievement must be taken into account when 

determining a performance rating for this Standard. 

OVERALL Rating for Standard I: Instructional Leader ship 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by cultivating a shared vision that 
makes powerful teaching and learning the central focus of schooling. 

  x   

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

Dr. Milaschewski has identified district strengths, critical areas for improvement and areas which require further assessment. I have been 

encouraged by how he systematically tackles areas needing improvement through gap analysis to determine current practices versus best 

practices. I continue to look forward to hearing of additional solutions for improvement.  

Our struggles with reading and literacy have been problematic for too long - having MCAS data was helpful when justifying the need for a change 

in literacy curriculum. The numbers tell a story and help us make informed decisions. In a truly brief time, the Superintendent was able to identify 

district issues with literacy, formulate a solution and secure funding for an elementary school literacy curriculum. We had multiple 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 6 of 7 

teachers/principals/reading specialists and other staff present this new curriculum at a School Committee meeting with enormous smiles on their 

faces and had parents with tears of joy once funding was secured…this process succeeded because of collaborative and decisive leadership.  

I am looking forward to the launching of i-Ready Common assessment at the middle school level for both Math and ELA. It will identify how 

students are progressing towards grade-level standards and will identify areas where targeted interventions and supports are needed. This is an 

area where the district is lacking so seeing it addressed so promptly is encouraging. 

 

I am looking forward to the data of increased outcomes at the high school when tiered supports are put in place. 
 

  Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard II : Management & Operations  
 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

II-A. Environment: Develops and executes effective plans, procedures, routines, and operational systems to address a full range of 
safety, health, emotional, and social needs. 

   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
   x  

II-B. Human Resources Management and Development: Implements a cohesive approach to recruiting, hiring, induction, 
development, and career growth that promotes high-quality and effective practice. 

   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
   x  

II-C. Scheduling and Management Information Systems : Uses systems to ensure optimal use of data and time for teaching, 
learning, and collaboration, minimizing disruptions and distractions for school-level staff.  
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

II-D. Law, Ethics, and Policies: Understands and complies with state and federal laws and mandates, school committee policies, 
collective bargaining agreements, and ethical guidelines. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

II-E. Fiscal Systems: Develops a budget that supports the district’s vision, mission, and goals; allocates and manages expenditures 
consistent with district- and school-level goals and available resources.  
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

OVERALL Rating for Standard II: Management & Operat ions 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by ensuring a safe, efficient, and 
effective learning environment, using resources to implement appropriate curriculum, staffing, and scheduling. 

   x  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 7 of 7 

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

Dr. Milaschewski understands that staff is the greatest asset of any district. His focus on meaningful and targeted professional 
development of teachers and cultivation/coaching of principals is refreshing to see. Coaching of principals was one aspect of Dr. 
Milaschewski’s interview process that intrigued me and made him stand out from the other candidates. I love the quote, “Cultivate and 
enhance instructional leadership skills in principals and watch student learning skyrocket.”  Dr. Milaschewski wants to focus principals 
on curriculum and instructional development rather than on building and operations management. Investing in staff development will 
enhance student learning and increase student achievement.  

 

Improvement at the high school is a focus area for me and the changes being made are promising: the pilot use of Endicott and 
Merrimack Fellows to provide academic support; dual-enrollment; re-vamping of the high school class schedule; and, the institution of  

the multi-tiered system of support. This type of innovative and creative thinking will help to make RMHS a leading high school in the 
State.  

 

The enhancements made to our METCO program have been remarkable. The introduction of late busses allows for students to be 
engaged in our community outside of the school day in extracurricular activities. Re-vamping of bus routes/pickups has been modified 
to decrease students travel time. The increase of student enrollment for next year and the introduction of METCO Director/Adjustment 
Counselor roles at each elementary school will provide social-emotional support for all students and a staff METCO presence in each 
building. These changes are exciting, innovative, and just the beginning. Clear job descriptions and a reporting structure for these 
positions will need to be developed. This program is on its way to flourish as it should! 

 

 
 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard II I: Family and Community 
Engagement  

 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

III-A. Engagement: Actively ensures that all families are welcome members of the classroom and school community and can contribute 
to the effectiveness of the classroom, school, district, and community. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

III-B. Sharing Responsibility: Continuously collaborates with families and community stakeholders to support student learning and 
development at home, school, and in the community.  

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 8 of 7 

III-C. Communication: Engages in regular, two-way, culturally proficient communication with families and community stakeholders 
about student learning and performance. 
   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

  x   

III-D. Family Concerns: Addresses family and community concerns in an equitable, effective, and efficient manner. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

OVERALL Rating for Standard III: Family & Community  Engagement 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff through effective partnerships with 
families, community organizations, and other stakeholders that support the mission of the district and its schools. 

  x   

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

It is always difficult to gauge how much communication is wanted, needed or necessary in a district. I feel that Dr. Milaschewski has 
established a good balance with regular communication to the community. His video as well as written communications are engaging 
and deliver information efficiently and effectively.  

 

As is evident in observing how he managed his entry plan and roll out − he is clearly effective with two-way communication. He 
reached out to all stakeholders in our community to gather information and history. He effectively processed that information and has 
developed a plan to propel the district forward. It is by listening to stakeholders and truly hearing what they are saying that helps him 
be an effective leader. 

 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard IV : Professional Culture  
 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

IV-A. Commitment to High Standards: Fosters a shared commitment to high standards of service, teaching, and learning with high 
expectations for achievement for all. 
   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

   x  

IV-B. Cultural Proficiency: Ensures that policies and practices enable staff members and students to interact effectively in a culturally 
diverse environment in which students’ backgrounds, identities, strengths, and challenges are respected. 

    



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 9 of 7 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

IV-C. Communication: Demonstrates strong interpersonal, written, and verbal communication skills. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

IV-D. Continuous Learning: Develops and nurtures a culture in which staff members are reflective about their practice and use student 
data, current research, best practices, and theory to continuously adapt practice and achieve improved results. Models these 
behaviors in his or her own practice. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

IV-E. Shared Vision: Successfully and continuously engages all stakeholders in the creation of a shared educational vision in which 
every student is prepared to succeed in postsecondary education and become a responsible citizen and global contributor. 
   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    x  

IV-F. Managing Conflict: Employs strategies for responding to disagreement and dissent, constructively resolving conflict and building 
consensus throughout a district or school community. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

OVERALL Rating for Standard IV: Professional Cultur e 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by nurturing and sustaining a 
districtwide culture of reflective practice, high expectations, and continuous learning for staff. 

   x  

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

The past couple of years have been exceedingly difficult for students, teachers, and staff. The Superintendent and his staff are effectively 

uncovering where we stand with student learning and how we will support each student moving forward. 

Dr. Milaschewski has identified 3 Core Values which identify him as a leader and how he approaches issues – through collaboration, equity, and 

excellence. It is evident that Dr. Milaschewski understands the importance of collaboration with his staff. He asks, listens, validates, and builds 

trust through this process. It has been interesting to watch him meet and gather information from all stakeholders’ groups.  

Dr. Milaschewski identified equity and excellence as two Core Values for our district. The district created an equity statement. The process for 

creating this statement was collaborative and first began at the summer leadership seminar and continued once the school year began. All 

stakeholders had the opportunity to contribute to and mold this statement. It is our district statement, and we all play a role in ensuring its 

mission.  

Dr. Milaschewski and the rest of the executive staff have been visible and interactive in the district. They have created an environment of 

excitement and hope. I appreciate his statement: “culture is the hardest to build and the easiest to break.”  It shows how important our district’s 

culture is, and how important it is to create. 

 

 

 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 1 of 7 

End-of -Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent  
 

 

Superintendent: Dr. Thomas Milaschewski             

Evaluator:  Charles Robinson             

 Name Signature  Date 

Step 1: Assess Progress Toward Goals ( Reference performance goals; check one for each set of goal[s].) 

Professional Practice Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress x  Met  Exceeded 

Student Learning Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress x  Met  Exceeded 

District Improvement Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress x  Met  Exceeded 

 

Step 2: Assess Performance on Standards ( Reference Performance Ratings per Standard; check one box for each Standard.) 
 

Unsatisfactory = Performance on a standard or overall has not significantly improved following a rating of Needs Improvement, or performance is consistently 
below the requirements of a standard or overall and is considered inadequate, or both. 

Needs Improvement/Developing = Performance on a standard or overall is below the requirements of a standard or overall but is not considered to be 
Unsatisfactory at the time. Improvement is necessary and expected.  

Proficient = Proficient practice is understood to be fully satisfactory. This is the rigorous expected level of performance. 

Exemplary = A rating of Exemplary indicates that practice significantly exceeds Proficient and could serve as a model of practice regionally or statewide. 

U
n

sa
ti

sf
ac

to
ry

 

N
ee

d
s 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 

P
ro

fi
ci

en
t 

E
xe

m
p

la
ry

 

Standard I: Instructional Leadership   x   

Standard II: Management and Operations    x   

Standard III: Family and Community Engagement    x   

Standard IV: Professional Culture   x   



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 2 of 7 

End-of -Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent  
 

Step 3: Rate Overall Summative Performance ( Based on Step 1 and Step 2 ratings; check one.) 

 Unsatisfactory  Needs Improvement             x  Proficient  Exemplary 

 

Step 4: Add Evaluator Comments 

Comments and analysis are recommended for any rating but are required for an overall summative rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory. 

Comments: 

My overall rating is that I couldn’t be more pleased with what Dr. Milaschewski performance to date.  I was very excited with what we 
saw during the interview process but remained cautious because talk is great, but action is what matters. 

 

Dr. Milaschewski’ s ability to listen and act has been very commendable and exciting for our district.  He knows how to address the 
low hanging fruit as well as tackle the difficult and complex issues.  His collaboration with all the stakeholders in town has been 
handled like a seasoned veteran from the Budget, to Killam, to Town Meeting, to ARPA requests etc.….  In none of these examples 
has he “talked at” anyone rather he has thoughtfully explained his reasoning and decision-making process. 

 

There is a lot of humility in Dr. Milaschewski which is an admirable and refreshing leadership quality that is extremely sustainable and 
will go a long way to accomplishing the district and community goal of excellence. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 3 of 7 

 

 

 

  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 4 of 7 

Superintendent’s Performance Goals  
 

 
Superintendents must identify at least one student learning goal, one professional practice goal, and two to four district 
improvement goals. Goals should be SMART and aligned to at least one focus Indicator from the Standards for Effective 
Administrative Leadership. 

D
id

 N
o

t 
M

ee
t 

S
o

m
e 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 

M
et

 

E
xc

ee
d

ed
 

Goals Focus Indicator(s) Description 

Student Learning Goal 
II-B Coaching, Developing, and Supporting Principals . Design and 

implement a district strategy for coaching, supporting, and developing 
principal talent. 

   x   

Professional Practice 
Goal 

III-C New Superintendent Induction Program . Develop skills in strategy 
development, data analysis, and instructional leadership by actively 
engaging in the first year of the New Superintendent Induction Program. 

   x   

District Improvement 
Goal 1 

I-E, IV-E Effective Entry and Direction Setting . By late spring, the district will have 
broad recognition by key stakeholder groups about the district’s most critical 
needs and will have a widely-understood process underway to identify the 
strategies and goals that will address those needs most effectively, and the 
measures that will be used to assess progress. 

   x   

District Improvement 
Goal 2 

II-A, IV-A Maintaining Momentum During the Transition . Keep the district moving 
forward during this year’s transition in leadership by working with principals 
and other district leaders to ensure that meaningful progress is made on 
critical district and school goals. 

   x   

 

Standards and Indicators for Effective Administrative Leadership 

Superintendents should identify 1-2 focus Indicators per Standard aligned to their goals. 

I. Instructional Leadership II. Management & Operations III. Family & Community Engagement IV. Professional Culture 

I-A. Curriculum  

I-B. Instruction 

I-C. Assessment 

I-D. Evaluation 

I-E. Data-Informed Decision Making 

I-F. Student Learning 

II-A. Environment 

II-B. HR Management and Development 

II-C. Scheduling & Management Information 

Systems 

II-D. Law, Ethics and Policies 

II-E. Fiscal Systems 

III-A. Engagement 

III-B. Sharing Responsibility 

III-C. Communication 

III-D. Family Concerns 

 

IV-A. Commitment to High Standards 

IV-B. Cultural Proficiency 

IV-C. Communication 

IV-D. Continuous Learning 

IV-E. Shared Vision 

IV-F. Managing Conflict 

  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 5 of 7 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard I:  Instructional Leadership  
 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

I-A. Curriculum: Ensures that all instructional staff design effective and rigorous standards-based units of instruction consisting of 
well-structured lessons with measureable outcomes. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-B. Instruction: Ensures that practices in all settings reflect high expectations regarding content and quality of effort and work, 
engage all students, and are personalized to accommodate diverse learning styles, needs, interests, and levels of readiness. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-C. Assessment: Ensures that all principals and administrators facilitate practices that propel personnel to use a variety of formal and 
informal methods and assessments to measure student learning, growth, and understanding and make necessary adjustments to 
their practice when students are not learning. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-D. Evaluation: Ensures effective and timely supervision and evaluation of all staff in alignment with state regulations and contract 
provisions. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-E. Data-Informed Decision Making: Uses multiple sources of evidence related to student learning—including state, district, and 
school assessment results and growth data—to inform school and district goals and improve organizational performance, 
educator effectiveness, and student learning. 

   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

  X   

I-F. Student Learning: Demonstrates expected impact on student learning based on multiple measures of student learning, growth, 
and achievement, including student progress on common assessments and statewide student growth measures where available. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

The Student Learning Indicator does not have corresponding 
descriptions of practice. Evidence of impact on student 

learning based on multiple measures of student learning, 
growth, and achievement must be taken into account when 

determining a performance rating for this Standard. 

OVERALL Rating for Standard I: Instructional Leader ship 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by cultivating a shared vision that 
makes powerful teaching and learning the central focus of schooling. 

  x   

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

Dr. Milaschewski has made it very clear from the beginning of his tenure that he is going make data informed decisions.  This is clearly 
easy to say but it requires a talent and a lot of work to make it successful.  I often use the phrase that there is no such thing as a lone 
ranger, and I certainly feel it evident in Dr. Milaschewski’ s leadership style in that he pulls data from many sources and individuals 
before he makes or recommends decisions.  He does not do things alone and he has the self-confidence and intelligence to rely on all 
stakeholders before leading a recommendation or decision.  Recent examples were the ARC Core Curriculum and School choice 
decisions.  Both required a lot of complex data review and collective work by many, and I feel Dr. Milaschewski handled each process 
masterfully.  Data decision making is here to stay and Dr. Milaschewski has shown that he has the talents to make it successful.  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 6 of 7 

 

 

 

  Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard II : Management & Operations  
 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

II-A. Environment: Develops and executes effective plans, procedures, routines, and operational systems to address a full range of 
safety, health, emotional, and social needs. 

   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
  X   

II-B. Human Resources Management and Development: Implements a cohesive approach to recruiting, hiring, induction, 
development, and career growth that promotes high-quality and effective practice. 

   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
  X   

II-C. Scheduling and Management Information Systems : Uses systems to ensure optimal use of data and time for teaching, 
learning, and collaboration, minimizing disruptions and distractions for school-level staff.  
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

II-D. Law, Ethics, and Policies: Understands and complies with state and federal laws and mandates, school committee policies, 
collective bargaining agreements, and ethical guidelines. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

II-E. Fiscal Systems: Develops a budget that supports the district’s vision, mission, and goals; allocates and manages expenditures 
consistent with district- and school-level goals and available resources.  
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

OVERALL Rating for Standard II: Management & Operat ions 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by ensuring a safe, efficient, and 
effective learning environment, using resources to implement appropriate curriculum, staffing, and scheduling. 

  x   



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 7 of 7 

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

As Dr. Milaschewski began his new role he had to immediately take over the districts COVID 19 response and processes – nothing there is a course for.  This 
added burden had to be managed along with many ongoing and additional work facing the district.  As I say throughout this evaluation, Dr. Milaschewski doesn’t 
do things alone.  With the COVID-19 response he worked very well with the Director of Nurses and Town staff to make the best and safest decisions for students.  
I also felt as if Dr. Milaschewski’ s approach to the COVID-19 response brought a new calmness and confidence in what the District was doing. 

 

Dr. Milaschewski’ s work with the Budget and the ongoing Killam project had the sense of a seasoned veteran at work to me.  Again, I point back to his reliance 
on input from experienced staff and stakeholders in his decision making and presentation. 

 

The budget increase was modest, but I was impressed with – to use the cliché – bang for the buck.  There were a lot of asks and they will all make the district 
better for students without huge spending increases.  I am particularly excited about the use of Fellows and I look forward  to hearing an update on it next year. 

 

Policy work is an ongoing and arguably the most student-centered duty of the School Committee and by extension the Superintendent and there are many of 
these decisions made throughout the year.  Dr. Milaschewski’ s work with the Committee and recommendations on Masking Policy and ALICE protocols was well 
prepared with the best interest of students in mind. 

 

In today’s environment Human Resources has become an increasingly complex role in an organization.  Dr. Milaschewski has expertly managed a highly effective 
HR Director through an ongoing process of significantly upgrading how we approach hiring, union matters and culture.  As I often say – our assets walk out the 
door every night.  Dr. Milaschewski gets this, and he understands that this has a direct impact on students and teaching and learning. 

 

Something that I feel is long overdue is assistant principals at the elementary level and I look forward to hearing Dr. Milaschewski’ s approach and 
recommendations on this. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard II I: Family and Community 
Engagement  

 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

III-A. Engagement: Actively ensures that all families are welcome members of the classroom and school community and can contribute 
to the effectiveness of the classroom, school, district, and community. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 8 of 7 

III-B. Sharing Responsibility: Continuously collaborates with families and community stakeholders to support student learning and 
development at home, school, and in the community.  

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

III-C. Communication: Engages in regular, two-way, culturally proficient communication with families and community stakeholders 
about student learning and performance. 
   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

   X  

III-D. Family Concerns: Addresses family and community concerns in an equitable, effective, and efficient manner. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

OVERALL Rating for Standard III: Family & Community  Engagement 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff through effective partnerships with 
families, community organizations, and other stakeholders that support the mission of the district and its schools. 

   x  

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

 

I believe one of Dr. Milaschewski’ s biggest strengths is his thoughtful two-way communication.  Often individuals believe good 
communication is regular updates etc. and it is, but more importantly it is listening to concerns and ideas.  From his first day Dr. 
Milaschewski has taken this two-way communication very seriously and undoubtably understands it is key to his and the districts long 
term success.   

I don’t recall ever giving an “E” rating for any category and my first thought was to rate this as Proficient as my comparison was to past 
practices but after much reflection past practices should not be an indicator in my mind as communication has been exemplary and it 
should be attributable to the current superintendent’s performance on its own and not comparable to what I am used to. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard IV : Professiona l Culture  
 

 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 9 of 7 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

IV-A. Commitment to High Standards: Fosters a shared commitment to high standards of service, teaching, and learning with high 
expectations for achievement for all. 
   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

  X   

IV-B. Cultural Proficiency: Ensures that policies and practices enable staff members and students to interact effectively in a culturally 
diverse environment in which students’ backgrounds, identities, strengths, and challenges are respected. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

IV-C. Communication: Demonstrates strong interpersonal, written, and verbal communication skills. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

IV-D. Continuous Learning: Develops and nurtures a culture in which staff members are reflective about their practice and use student 
data, current research, best practices, and theory to continuously adapt practice and achieve improved results. Models these 
behaviors in his or her own practice. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

IV-E. Shared Vision: Successfully and continuously engages all stakeholders in the creation of a shared educational vision in which 
every student is prepared to succeed in postsecondary education and become a responsible citizen and global contributor. 
   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

  X   

IV-F. Managing Conflict: Employs strategies for responding to disagreement and dissent, constructively resolving conflict and building 
consensus throughout a district or school community. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

OVERALL Rating for Standard IV: Professional Cultur e 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by nurturing and sustaining a 
districtwide culture of reflective practice, high expectations, and continuous learning for staff. 

  x   

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

Professional Culture encompasses a lot of the outstanding work that Dr. Milaschewski and his staff have done this year in the 
collective goal toward excellence. 

 

The February and April vacation academies were a creative and cost-effective way to address learning deficiencies that were 
exacerbated by the pandemic.  The data will determine the effectiveness.  This is a great example of the districts commitment to equity 
and achieving excellence for all.   

 

Dr. Milaschewski’ s commitment to METCO and his willingness to include and listen to our Director’s thoughts and needs has been 
outstanding.  The program expansion addresses long over needs in our district and community as does the creative way of combining 
the METCO Coordinator / School Counselor role.  I have appreciated the thoughtful and diligent hiring process that has and is being 
used in filling these positions. 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 10 of 7 

 

Dr. Milaschewski’ s continual work in finding ways to provide additional opportunities and challenges to our students through is 
relationships has and will be a great added benefit to our district.   

 

Dr. Milaschewski wasted no time in looking for ways to provide tuition free Full-day Kindergarten.  His collaboration with the committee 
and the town to find creative funding ways was commendable work during many other things that were going on.  There has been a lot 
of talk about this, and I appreciate Dr. Milaschewski’ s willingness to put talk to action.  We are not completely there yet but there are 
the workings of a plan in place which has been long overdue.  

 

There is a buzz in Reading about the schools and its leadership team and a lot of this comes from the thoughtful and productive 
visibility the community is seeing from Dr. Milaschewski and his team. 

 

Further, the collaborative leadership style will pay dividends as many minds at the table always produces superior results. 

 

 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 1 of 9 

End-of -Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent  
 

 

Superintendent: Dr. Thomas Milaschewski             

Evaluator:  Thomas Wise       2022-06-02 

 Name Signature  Date 

Step 1: Assess Progress Toward Goals ( Reference performance goals; check one for each set of goal[s].) 

Professional Practice Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress  Met  Exceeded 

Student Learning Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress  Met  Exceeded 

District Improvement Goal(s)  Did Not Meet  Some Progress  Significant Progress  Met  Exceeded 

 

Step 2: Assess Performance on Standards ( Reference Performance Ratings per Standard; check one box for each Standard.) 
 

Unsatisfactory = Performance on a standard or overall has not significantly improved following a rating of Needs Improvement, or performance is consistently 
below the requirements of a standard or overall and is considered inadequate, or both. 

Needs Improvement/Developing = Performance on a standard or overall is below the requirements of a standard or overall but is not considered to be 
Unsatisfactory at the time. Improvement is necessary and expected.  

Proficient = Proficient practice is understood to be fully satisfactory. This is the rigorous expected level of performance. 

Exemplary = A rating of Exemplary indicates that practice significantly exceeds Proficient and could serve as a model of practice regionally or statewide. 

U
n

sa
ti

sf
ac

to
ry

 

N
ee

d
s 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 

P
ro

fi
ci

en
t 

E
xe

m
p

la
ry

 

Standard I: Instructional Leadership     

Standard II: Management and Operations      

Standard III: Family and Community Engagement      

Standard IV: Professional Culture     



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 2 of 9 

End-of -Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent  
 

Step 3: Rate Overall Summative Performance ( Based on Step 1 and Step 2 ratings; check one.) 

 Unsatisfactory  Needs Improvement              Proficient  Exemplary 

 

Step 4: Add Evaluator Comments 

Comments and analysis are recommended for any rating but are required for an overall summative rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory. 

Comments: 

Summary : My summary here will mirror that of my Formative Assessment of Dr. Milaschewski. He has started his career here in 
Reading in a very strong way. His collaborative nature brings people in. His willingness to roll up his sleeves and dive into a 
classroom with Students and Teacher is appreciated by so many staff members. He has quite literally brought a breath of fresh air. 
With all that said, it is too early in his career to rate him Exemplary. We need to see evidence of instructional practice improvements 
for our teachers and outcome improvements for our students. The foundation is set for that to happen, but much work remains. Dr. 
Milaschewski sets the bar very high for himself and I appreciate that. He walks it and talks it. He analyzes the data, collaboratively 
works on solutions, and builds up the capacity of his team. He is the leader Reading Public Schools needs now and I appreciate 
being able to work with him. Thus, his overall rating from this reviewer is Proficient. 

 

Student Learning Goal: Coaching, Developing, and Su pporting Principals.  As I look through all the deliverables associated with 
this goal, Dr. Milachewski checked the box on each. However, this is not a one-year goal and we have not yet observed the fruit of 
the labor. For that reason, I am rating this as Significant Progress. Dr. Milaschewski completed the research, both around the need 
for Principals as Educational Leaders and around his process of coaching / mentoring them through the constant challenge we have 
endured throughout the COVID era. Additionally, he designed a structure that enabled the time for this professional development for 
the Principals in a job-embedded way, including collective feedback to each other. The process also includes tying evidence-based 
practices to the coaching. This perhaps is one of the items I am most excited about and curious to see the growth of, both of Dr. 
Milaschewski and each of his Principals. Throughout the year, including most recently in the many presentations for ARC Core, Dr. 
Milaschewski has demonstrated vulnerability in his own understanding and growth of that understanding. This fosters a culture of 
continuous improvement and openness to further evidence that may improve student outcomes. This is great to see and his 
openness resonated time and again with Teachers, Principals and District Leadership. For clarity’s sake, the only reason I am rating 
this as SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS is because the results are pending. He completed the key actions, but as discussed, this will be a 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 3 of 9 

multi-year process to the results and Principals confidently saying they can are Educational Leaders and not just Operational 
Managers will be the final measure to close this goal. 

 

Professional Practice: New Superintendent Induction  Program. The feedback we have received from both Dr. Milaschewski and 
his coach, Dr. Chris McGrath, has been very positive here. This is year one of a three-year program and we have already seen 
positive returns for Dr. Milaschewski, the cohort he is involved in and his coach. Dr. Milaschewski and Dr. McGrath seem to have a 
relationship of “iron sharpens iron” and Dr. McGrath even commented about how the learning is bi-directional. While this is a three-
year program, the evidence so far has outstanding. 

District Improvement Goal: Effective Entry and Dire ction Setting. Much of my commentary from the Formative assessment 
holds. The Entry was excellent and included gathering feedback from so many parties – Parents, Teachers, Administrators, other 
Town Staff, etc. Additionally, the Direction Setting, so far, is on course. As Dr. Milaschewski laid out in his District Improvement Plan 
update, we have much work to do to finalize the Direction Setting. However, so far, we have seen great progress and been able to 
move the District forward this year with the decision around ARC Core perhaps being the most critical for the future of the District. 
There is much more to do here though so this is not quite complete, and thus, will receive a rating of Significant Progress. 

District Improvement Goal: Maintaining Momentum Dur ing the Transition. Dr. Milaschewski’s execution against this goal has 
been truly exemplary. During his entry, we didn’t skip a beat and in fact increased the momentum. Dr. Milaschewski was active in 
advocating for our Teachers and Students and designed a Budget that addresses the ability to learn post COVID. Additionally, the 
COVID gap was fully acknowledged and under his leadership, Dr. Hardy was able to execute to vacation camps to help address the 
learning loss. Additionally, Dr. Milaschewski is ever present in the schools and that has been so appreciated by Students, Teachers, 
Principals, and other Staff Members. During my time visiting schools, I have seen numerous kids that know him by name, and he has 
been able to get to their level to help and guide them. Technically, he still has to complete the Summative reviews of his team, but I 
have no doubt that will be completed and have seen evidence of progress so far. 

  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 4 of 9 

Superintendent’s Performa nce Goals  
 

 
Superintendents must identify at least one student learning goal, one professional practice goal, and two to four district 
improvement goals. Goals should be SMART and aligned to at least one focus Indicator from the Standards for Effective 
Administrative Leadership. 

D
id

 N
o

t 
M

ee
t 

S
o

m
e 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 

M
et

 

E
xc

ee
d

ed
 

Goals Focus Indicator(s) Description 

Student Learning Goal 
II-B Coaching, Developing, and Supporting Principals . Design and 

implement a district strategy for coaching, supporting, and developing 
principal talent. 

     

Professional Practice 
Goal 

III-C New Superintendent Induction Program . Develop skills in strategy 
development, data analysis, and instructional leadership by actively 
engaging in the first year of the New Superintendent Induction Program. 

     

District Improvement 
Goal 1 

I-E, IV-E Effective Entry and Direction Setting . By late spring, the district will have 
broad recognition by key stakeholder groups about the district’s most critical 
needs and will have a widely-understood process underway to identify the 
strategies and goals that will address those needs most effectively, and the 
measures that will be used to assess progress. 

     

District Improvement 
Goal 2 

II-A, IV-A Maintaining Momentum During the Transition . Keep the district moving 
forward during this year’s transition in leadership by working with principals 
and other district leaders to ensure that meaningful progress is made on 
critical district and school goals. 

     

 

Standards and Indicators for Effective Administrative Leadership 

Superintendents should identify 1-2 focus Indicators per Standard aligned to their goals. 

I. Instructional Leadership II. Management & Operations III. Family & Community Engagement IV. Professional Culture 

I-A. Curriculum  

I-B. Instruction 

I-C. Assessment 

I-D. Evaluation 

I-E. Data-Informed Decision Making 

I-F. Student Learning 

II-A. Environment 

II-B. HR Management and Development 

II-C. Scheduling & Management Information 

Systems 

II-D. Law, Ethics and Policies 

II-E. Fiscal Systems 

III-A. Engagement 

III-B. Sharing Responsibility 

III-C. Communication 

III-D. Family Concerns 

 

IV-A. Commitment to High Standards 

IV-B. Cultural Proficiency 

IV-C. Communication 

IV-D. Continuous Learning 

IV-E. Shared Vision 

IV-F. Managing Conflict 

  



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 5 of 9 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard I:  Instructional Leadership  
 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

I-A. Curriculum: Ensures that all instructional staff design effective and rigorous standards-based units of instruction consisting of 
well-structured lessons with measureable outcomes. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-B. Instruction: Ensures that practices in all settings reflect high expectations regarding content and quality of effort and work, 
engage all students, and are personalized to accommodate diverse learning styles, needs, interests, and levels of readiness. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-C. Assessment: Ensures that all principals and administrators facilitate practices that propel personnel to use a variety of formal and 
informal methods and assessments to measure student learning, growth, and understanding and make necessary adjustments to 
their practice when students are not learning. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-D. Evaluation: Ensures effective and timely supervision and evaluation of all staff in alignment with state regulations and contract 
provisions. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-E. Data-Informed Decision Making: Uses multiple sources of evidence related to student learning—including state, district, and 
school assessment results and growth data—to inform school and district goals and improve organizational performance, 
educator effectiveness, and student learning. 

   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

I-F. Student Learning: Demonstrates expected impact on student learning based on multiple measures of student learning, growth, 
and achievement, including student progress on common assessments and statewide student growth measures where available. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

The Student Learning Indicator does not have corresponding 
descriptions of practice. Evidence of impact on student 

learning based on multiple measures of student learning, 
growth, and achievement must be taken into account when 

determining a performance rating for this Standard. 

OVERALL Rating for Standard I: Instructional Leader ship 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by cultivating a shared vision that 
makes powerful teaching and learning the central focus of schooling. 

    

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

 
With respect to Data Informed Decision Making, I give Dr. Milaschewski high grades overall.  Some examples of what has happened as a result of his, and that of 
his team’s analysis include: 

• Implementation of the February and April vacation academies with targeted students based on their MCAS and District Measures. 
• Focus on reading as a core area for improvement, culminating in the proposal to implement ARC Core for reading and writing instruction with 

implementation over the next four years. This came to the forefront after Dr. Milaschewski and team looked at our subgroup data on the MCAS and saw 
the EdReports data on the Units of Study and Fountas & Pinnell curriculum tools we currently use. 

 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 6 of 9 

To move this to exemplary, we need to implement more regular data capture, data teams and adjusted instruction aligned with the data. This is happening in 
some pockets, but it needs to be systemized across the district and appropriate professional development for the Principals and Teachers needs to be put in 
place. I expect this will be an addition to our existing Student Support Teams once the infrastructure is in place. 

 

  Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard II : Management & Operations  
 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

II-A. Environment: Develops and executes effective plans, procedures, routines, and operational systems to address a full range of 
safety, health, emotional, and social needs. 

   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

II-B. Human Resources Management and Development: Implements a cohesive approach to recruiting, hiring, induction, 
development, and career growth that promotes high-quality and effective practice. 

   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

II-C. Scheduling and Management Information Systems : Uses systems to ensure optimal use of data and time for teaching, 
learning, and collaboration, minimizing disruptions and distractions for school-level staff.  
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

II-D. Law, Ethics, and Policies: Understands and complies with state and federal laws and mandates, school committee policies, 
collective bargaining agreements, and ethical guidelines. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

II-E. Fiscal Systems: Develops a budget that supports the district’s vision, mission, and goals; allocates and manages expenditures 
consistent with district- and school-level goals and available resources.  
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

OVERALL Rating for Standard II: Management & Operat ions 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by ensuring a safe, efficient, and 
effective learning environment, using resources to implement appropriate curriculum, staffing, and scheduling. 

    



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 7 of 9 

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

 

The Environment was a huge focus for Dr. Milaschewski this year in three core ways: 

• Physical health and safety with COVID. Dr. Milaschewski was great at working with the Director of Nurses throughout the year. He advocated on behalf 
of her to add nursing staff early in the year and again for next year. He also worked quite effectively with her and the Public Health Director of the Town of 
Reading with respect to the mask removal at the end of February. The collaborative, consensus building approach he took there was yet another example 
of his style. 

• Social Emotional.  Dr. Milaschewski observed and listened to his staff as he and his team were building the budget for FY23. That is most evident in the 
huge investment in Social Emotional needs of our students. We see that with the Adjustment Counselors at the Elementary and High School Level as well 
as the expansion of the Stepping Stones program at the High School. If students aren’t emotionally ready to learn, they won’t so this foundational 
investment is great to see. 

• Culture.  The culture has done a complete 180. The casual conversations with staff as well as evidence provided by Dr. Milaschewski demonstrates his 
style of collaboration, his inclusiveness of teacher voice, his focus on principals as educational leaders and his constant presence is schools has been 
extraordinarily well received. 

With all this focus and his demonstrated leadership in this space, I rate this category Exemplary. 

 
On the Human Resources Management and Development front, Dr. Milaschewski and his team are off to a great start. Many, small, but noticeable changes have 
been implemented by Director of Human Resources Michelle Roach. Dr. Milaschewski has trusted her to make these change and they have benefited the District, 
even during a time when finding staff and filling vacancies is a far reaching problem. 

 

Additionally, Dr. Milaschewski has commenced the process of coaching the Principals into educational leaders rather than merely operational managers. This is a 
critical lever to pull over the next few years as we drive for improvement across the district. I would like to see programs to develop more inhouse talent as we 
have a few interested parties in moving up into administration. Thus, it would be great to see Dr. Milaschewski and Michelle Roach work on such a program to 
grow our internal bench. 

 

While I initially considered this as Proficient overall, the Professional Culture change has been so vast that I have to adjust my initially thinking to make this 
Exemplary 
 

 

Superintendent’s Performance Rating for Standard II I: Family and Community 
Engagement  

 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

III-A. Engagement: Actively ensures that all families are welcome members of the classroom and school community and can contribute 
to the effectiveness of the classroom, school, district, and community. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 8 of 9 

III-B. Sharing Responsibility: Continuously collaborates with families and community stakeholders to support student learning and 
development at home, school, and in the community.  

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

III-C. Communication: Engages in regular, two-way, culturally proficient communication with families and community stakeholders 
about student learning and performance. 
   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

III-D. Family Concerns: Addresses family and community concerns in an equitable, effective, and efficient manner. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

OVERALL Rating for Standard III: Family & Community  Engagement 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff through effective partnerships with 
families, community organizations, and other stakeholders that support the mission of the district and its schools. 

    

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

 
Dr. Milaschewski’s Entry Plan forced a great deal of communication between himself, each school community, and many other stakeholders across the town. 
Additionally, his weekly updates were relevant, available in many forms and demonstrated the collaborative nature of central office by having them signed by the 
team. He also was able to adjust his video updates to include closed captioning in many different languages at the request of one committee member. 

 

His style is gracious and well received by virtually every staff member I have had the pleasure of seeing in action or talking with. He also has the innate ability to 
get down to the level of each student, whether at the high school or all the way down to RISE. I will never forget seeing his interaction with a REACH program 
student and they way he was able to engage in thoughtful yet challenging and affirming communication with that student. In doing so, he sets a high bar and 
demonstrates the way in which he wants the staff of the district to interact with ALL our students. 

 

Further, Dr. Milaschewski has proven his ability to work with the Reading Teachers Association in a very collaborative fashion. One point of evidence for this was 
the Mask process in February 2022. Further, he has developed a great working relationship with the new Town Manager, Fidel Maltez, in a very short period of 
time, which I attribute to this communication style and collaborative nature. 

 

Overall, his communication has been Exemplary. 

Superintendent’s Performance Rati ng for Standard IV: Professional Culture  
 

 

Rate each focus Indicator and indicate the overall Standard rating below. (*Focus Indicators are those aligned to 
superintendent goal(s).) U NI P E 

IV-A. Commitment to High Standards: Fosters a shared commitment to high standards of service, teaching, and learning with high 
expectations for achievement for all. 
   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 9 of 9 

IV-B. Cultural Proficiency: Ensures that policies and practices enable staff members and students to interact effectively in a culturally 
diverse environment in which students’ backgrounds, identities, strengths, and challenges are respected. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

IV-C. Communication: Demonstrates strong interpersonal, written, and verbal communication skills. 
 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

IV-D. Continuous Learning: Develops and nurtures a culture in which staff members are reflective about their practice and use student 
data, current research, best practices, and theory to continuously adapt practice and achieve improved results. Models these 
behaviors in his or her own practice. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

IV-E. Shared Vision: Successfully and continuously engages all stakeholders in the creation of a shared educational vision in which 
every student is prepared to succeed in postsecondary education and become a responsible citizen and global contributor. 
   Focus Indicator (check if yes) 

    

IV-F. Managing Conflict: Employs strategies for responding to disagreement and dissent, constructively resolving conflict and building 
consensus throughout a district or school community. 

 Focus Indicator (check if yes) 
    

OVERALL Rating for Standard IV: Professional Cultur e 
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by nurturing and sustaining a 
districtwide culture of reflective practice, high expectations, and continuous learning for staff. 

    

Comments and analysis (recommended for any overall rating; required for overall rating of Exemplary, Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory): 

 
Dr. Milaschewski is not afraid to shoot for a high bar. To achieve that, he knows he needs to hold himself to a high bar and needs to foster the same mindset 
across the district. He has demonstrated this throughout the year when he looks at the data, presents to the committee, talks with principals and teachers and 
works with students. Thinking back to that conversation with the student in REACH, even that discussion was holding a high bar for the student – asking him to do 
research, asking for evidence to back up his claims, engaging the teacher in part of the process, and maintaining joint accountability the next time they saw each 
other. It was a small example, but one that spoke to me about his expectations for EVERY student. 

 

We have seen this commitment to high standards fostered across the leadership team and across the district. Whether it is a presentation on the MCAS scores in 
which we highlight areas where we need to do better or the Equity statement we went back to time and again throughout the year, the focus on ALL learners was 
evident. This culminated recently with the presentations to the School Committee, the Reading ARPA Advisory Committee and the Select Board about the new 
literacy curriculum – which was pursued so ALL students could achieve grade level (or higher) literacy levels. 

 

The Shared Vision is a work in progress, but the continual engagement of stakeholders has been impressive to behold.  Whether it is providing all parents and 
staff the ability to provide feedback prior to visiting each school or engaging search committees in the process of finding the best principal for Wood End or 
Parker, Dr. Milaschewski engages all stakeholders in the process.  While the Vision is not yet complete, and thus the Proficient rating, we have seen great strides 
throughout the year with many baby steps to improve our District. 

 

Overall, due to the High Standards focus and my belief in that as a core need for the district, I will rate this category as Exemplary. 



  

End-of-Cycle Summative Evaluation Report: Superintendent   2019       Page 10 of 9 

 



 

 

 

 
 

To: Reading School Committee 
From: Michelle Roach, Human Resources Director 
Date: June 9, 2022 
Re: Paraeducator Holiday Schedule 
 
 
 
The School Committee and Reading Paraeducators Association met during May 2021 to negotiate and 

finalize a collective bargaining agreement effective July 1, 2021, and expiring June 30, 2024. The Reading 

Paraeducators Association voted to accept the negotiated CBA and it was subsequently signed by both 

parties. At the time of negotiation and Association vote, Juneteenth (June 19th) was not yet a federal 

holiday. 

Juneteenth became a federal holiday on June 17, 2021. As such, it was negotiated and accepted as part of 

the holiday schedule for the following associations: Reading Cafeteria Employees, Reading Facilities School 

Custodians, and Reading Administrative Secretaries. Given the timing of negotiations with the Reading 

Paraeducators Association, it was unable to be included in their holiday schedule. The attached MOA would 

entitle the Reading Paraeducators Association to Juneteenth (June 19th) as a paid holiday when it falls 

during the school year and is observed on a day the paraeducator is scheduled to work within the regular 

work week. 

 

Reading Public Schools 
Instilling a joy of learning and inspiring the innovative leaders of tomorrow 82 Oakland Road 

Reading, MA 01867 

Phone: 781-944-5800 
Fax: 781-942-9149 

 

 



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE READING SCHOOL COMMITTEE AND 

READING PARAEDUCATORS ASSOCIATION 

 
 
The Reading School Committee (“Committee”) and the Reading Paraeducators Association (“Association”) agree 
to amend their July 1, 2021-June 30, 2024 collective bargaining agreement (“CBA”) with the modifications agreed 
upon in this Memorandum of Agreement (“MOA”). This agreement shall remain in effect through June 30, 2024, 
and at which date it shall expire, unless the parties negotiate and agree to an Amendment. 
 
The Committee and the Association collectively referred to as the “parties,” have reviewed the holidays contained 
within Article 12. Both parties agree that each employee shall be entitled to Juneteenth (June 19th) as a paid 
holiday when it falls during the school year and is observed on a day the paraeducator is scheduled to work within 
the regular work week. 

 
This agreement shall not be modified except for in writing and by mutual agreement and consent of both parties. 
 
 
 
FOR THE READING SCHOOL COMMITTEE      FOR THE READING PARAEDUCATORS ASSOCIATION 
       
 
 
__________________________________                    __________________________________ 
Chair 
                                                                     __________________________________ 
 
                                                                                         
 
 
DATE ______________________                                DATE ______________________    

 

 



1

Brown, Susan

From: Wise, Thomas

Sent: Tuesday, June 7, 2022 12:54 AM

To: Frederick Van Magness

Cc: Milaschewski, Thomas; Brown, Susan

Subject: RE: ARPA Funds....additional School Security Investment

Fred -  

 

Thank you for your e-mail and your willingness to advocate for such support. 

 

I wanted to quickly let you know that the town completed security improvements to ours schools and other town 

buildings only about a year ago.  Town Meeting appropriated about $4MM to complete that project.  That project was 

undertaken after consultation with external security experts.  Additionally, the schools hold developmentally 

appropriate drills in concert with the Reading Police multiple times per year. 

 

With that said, I promise to reach out to our facilities director to see if he believes there is anything left to do. 

 

Thank you. 

 

Thomas Wise 

Chair 

Reading School Committee 

 

Email: thomas.wise@reading.k12.ma.us 

SC Distribution List: schoolcommittee@reading.k12.ma.us 

Mobile: (617) 869-6825 

Reading Public Schools Website: https://reading.k12.ma.us 

 

When writing or responding, please remember that the Secretary of State's Office has determined that email is a public 

record.  This communication may contain privileged or other confidential information. If you are not the intended 

recipient, or believe that you have received this communication in error, please do not print, copy, retransmit, 

disseminate, or otherwise use the information. Also, please indicate to the sender that you have received this email in 

error, and delete the copy you received. 

 

-----Original Message----- 

From: Frederick Van Magness <fvanmagness@gmail.com>  

Sent: Thursday, June 2, 2022 1:30 PM 

To: DG School Committee <SchoolCommittee@reading.k12.ma.us>; selectboard@ci.reading.ma.us 

Subject: ARPA Funds....additional School Security Investment 

 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Reading Public Schools. Do not click links or open attachments unless 

you recognize the sender email address and know the content is safe. 

 

Dear Select Board and School Committee members, 

 

I have read about deliberations and some of the “handouts…real or proposed" of the ARPA funds. In considering where 

to spend additional funds, maybe you should take a step back and evaluate how much additional money should be spent 

adding more hardening to ALL of the Reading schools. Despite what has been spent in the recent past, are all of the 



2

schools really secure? Have they been really tested? I’ve seen the high school not secure. Just look at the lessons already 

flowing from Uvalde. Additional long term investment in the safety of 3500 + kids instead of senior center trips or some 

of the salary bonuses being proposed would be a better use of funds. Hire a couple of professional school security 

experts from outside of Reading and have them fully evaluate and test vulnerabilities periodically….then continue to fix 

them with a real investment of these funds. 

 

Fred Van Magness Sr. 

243 Franklin St. 




